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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited
(Formerly known as Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited prior to that
As Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Steel Infra Solutions Company
Limited (Formerly known as Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited prior to that as Steel Infra
Solutions Private Limited) (hercinafier referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “comsolidated financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, and of consolidated profit including other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant
of India (“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Helding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safegnarding the assets of the Group for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial statements
by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 2
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements,

b. Tn our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books except for the matter stated in the paragraph 1(h)(vi} below on reporting under Rule 11(g).
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c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

¢. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of
the statutory auditors of the subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group companies,
incorporated in India are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

. The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 1(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 1(h)(vi} below on
reporting under Rule 11(g).

g. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B”.

h. With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial position of
the Group.
ii. The Group did not have any material foresecable losses on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company.

iv.

(1) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is
company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that such
parties shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Uliimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is a
company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary, from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded jp gvriting
or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Holding Company_grat -
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subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management of the Holding company in this regard nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to belicve that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and {2) above, contain any material mis-
statement.

V. On the basis of our verification, we report that:

1. The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of the same
declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to payment of dividend.

ii. The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has proposed final dividend for the year
which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies
to declaration of dividend. (Refer Note 58 to the consolidated financial statements)

Vi. Based on our examination which includes test checks, in respect of the Holding Company
except for the instances mentioned below, the Holding Company has used accounting
softwares (SAP BI and HR Connect) for maintaining their respective books of account for
the year ended March 31, 2025, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for ail relevant transactions recorded in the
softwares and further, during the course of audit we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved
by the Holding Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention

In regard to the accounting software (SAP B1)

Nature of exception Exception noted
Instances of accounting softwares used | Based on our examination which included test
for maintaining its books of account | checks, the Company has used an accounting
wherein we are unable to comment at | software for maintaining its books of account
the database level, whether audit trail | which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
facility has operated throughout the | log) facility, except that the audit trail feature
year for all transactions and Whether | was enabled subsequent to the year end at the
audit trail feature was tampered with | database level in respect of an accounting
and whether Audit trail data is | software to log any direct data changes. Further,
preserved for 8 years, effective from | where enabled, audit trail feature has been
April 01, 2023, operated for all relevant transactions recorded
in the accounting software. Also, during the
course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audil trail feature being tampered
with in respect of such accounting software.
Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has
been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention to
the extent it was enabled and recorded in
respective years.
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Nature of exception

Exception noted

Accounting softwares
managed by Third party
vendor for which no SOC
Type II report available to
provide, hence, we are unable
to comment whether the
accounting software has a
feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) and whether it was
enabled throughout the year
and whether Audit trail data is
preserved for 8  years,
effective from April 01, 2023,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the
Company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of accounts, which is managed and
maintained by a third-party software service provider.
However, in absence of sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence including SOC report we are unable to comment
whether the accounting software has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and whether the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software or whether there is
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
Additionally, we are unable to comment whether the andit
trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention.

In respect of the Subsidiary, the books of account of are maintained in an electronic mode but
not using an accounting software i.e, books of account have been maintained manually.
Accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act is not
applicable.

2. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 197
of the Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable to, the Holding Company as it converted
itself to a Public company subsequent to the year end and its Subsidiary is a private Company.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports issued
by us we report that there are no Qualifications/adverse remarks,

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration No. 105047W

Ananthakrishnan Govindan
Partner

Membership No. 205226
UDIN: 25205226BMKTSG7633]

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 20, 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS COMPANY
LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS COMPANY PRIVATE
LIMITED PRIOR TO THAT STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
conirol.

s (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management and Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the andit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with govemance of the Holding Company and such other entity
inctuded in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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e also provide %ose charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Ananthakrishnan Govindan
Partner
Membership No. 205226

UDIN: 25205226 BMKTSG7633

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 20, 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS COMPANY
LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS COMPANY PRIVATE
LIMITED PRIOR TO THAT AS STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

[Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited (Formerly Known
as Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited and Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited) on the
consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls reference to consolidated financial
statements of Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited (Formerly Known as Steel Infra Solutions Company
Private Limited and Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™)
which includes the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company.

Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to one subsidiary incorporated in
India namely SISCOL Infra Private Limited, pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(FE) dated June 13th, 2017.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding
Company which is a company incorporated in India, have, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICATI™).

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Management and the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company,
which is a company incorporated in India, have, in all material aspects, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company which is a company incorporated in India, have, in all material
aspects, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply w1th ethmal

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequa AS
B .90
(%
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company which is a company incorporated in India, have, in all material aspects.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Fimancial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate,

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Anan%gég'shnan Govindan

Partner
Membership No. 205226 _
UDIN: 25205226BMKTSG763

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 20, 2025

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Rarm Nagar, Goregaon (E}, Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6974 0200
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chandigarh | Chennai | Coimbatore | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune wWww.mska.in



Steel infra Sulullons Company Limited

(Fermorly known as "Steal lnfra Solutions Company Private Limited’, prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Privale Limited'}

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Al Aimaunt in INR Millions, unless atherwise stated}

ASSETS
Nan-curreat assets
#roporty, paent and equipment
Righle¢f=uiss itsnis
Intangible aswts
Financial assels
{i} Other financlal assels
Total non-currant assats
Currant assats
inventories
Financial assels
{i] Trade receivables
{fi} Cash and cash equivalents
{tii} Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents
{iv} Other financial assets
Other current assels
Total current assets

Total assets

EQRHTY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equily share capital
Other equily

Total egquity

Liabiiities
Hop-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{i} Barrowings
{ii) Lease Liabiiities
Provisions
Delerrad tax labilities (Net)
Other nan-current liabilities
Total nop-current liabilities
Current {iabilities
Financial liabilities
{1} Barrowings
{ii] Lease Liabililies
4ii) Trade payables
4) total outstanding <Jues of micio enlerpases and small enterrises
b} tatal suisialing dues of creditors other Uan micre eaterpiises
and sinalt entgrprises
{iv} Other fmancial lizbitites
Other current liabitives
Frovisions

Current tax labilities (net)
Totzl current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

See accompanying notes to tie Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying notes ale ap Integral part of the Censolidaled Financial Statements.

As per our teport of evea dale
For M5 KA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration ¥o.2 105047W

Ananthakrishnan Govindan
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Ravikant Uppal

Partner Managuig Director
Membership No: 205226 DIk DOO25970
Place: Hyderabad Place: Delhi

Date: June 20, 2025

Pate; June 70, 2025

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
tarch 31, 2024

942,70 7,89
333,47 104,45
1703 1,73
409.06 358,88
1,702.56 1,197.95
1,024.42 556.5&
1,355.85 975.53
&4.30 14.85
4.61 7.93
616.46 1,035.66
174.76 84.79
3,240.90 2,670.32
B 434138 ~ 3,868.27
406,04 406.04
1,767.91 1,476.20
2,173.95 4,882.24
- .54
324.15 9354
12.34 10.65
47,58 41,39

- 1.20
384.07 14%.34
135.79 136.14
15.53 6.9
24.91 79.83
1.770.58 1,112.66
0.02 0.93
411,37 267.63
1.67 0.86
19.07 37.63
7,384.94 1,836.69
2,763.01 1,986.03
4,942.94 3,868.27

For and on behalf of the Boatd of Directars
Steel Infra Selutians Company Limited

(Fermerly known as ‘Steel Infra Solutivas Comy:
‘Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited]) E

[CIN: UZ7. O17PLC324842) L

Kannabiraf Rajagupal
Yhole-whe Director &
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00135666

Place: Bangaloie
Bate: June 20, 2025

1y Pavate Limiied, paior o that as

il

Suraj Agrawal
Cornpaby Secretary

Membership Ho: 43787

Place: Delhi
Date: June 20, 2025



Steal Infra Solutions Company Limited
{Formerly known as '$teel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as "Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited")

Consolidated Statement of Prefit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All Ameunt in INR Milliens, unless ctherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Note March 31, 2025 warch 31, 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 24 6,360.9% 5,734.87
Other income 25 2.5 27.24
Totsl income 6,393.50 5,762.11
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 26 4,196.76 3,792.08
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stores and spares 27 {13%.02} 59.93
Employee benefits expense 25 410,85 336.30
Finance costs 29 178.38 135.3%
Depreciation and amortisation expense Jo 81.37 53.64
Other expenses 31 1,229.13 1,060.97
Total expenses 5,857.647 §,438.31
Profit before tax 435.83 123,80
Income tax expense

Curreat tax 32 106.56 80.C0

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 32 (6.27} -

Deferred tax 32 5,92 {4.65)
Total income tax expense 106.21 75.35
Praofit for the year 129.62 248.45
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit plans 1.07 3.35
Income tax effect on these items {0.27} {0.64)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax Q.89 2.51
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax o 330,42 250,96

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 329.62 248,45
Non-controlling interests = N

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 0.80 .51
Hon-controlling interests . =

Total comprehensive income far the year attributable ta:
Qwners of the parent i30.42 250,96
Nen-controlling intarests - P

Earnings par equity share {par value of INR 10 each)

33
« Basic {in {R) 8.1z 6,32
- Dituted (in INR) 8.08 5.95
See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consclidated Financial Statements.

As per our repart of even date
For M5 K A & Associates For and on beha!f of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants steel nfra Solutions Company Limited
(Formerly known as 'Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as
‘Stzel [nfra Soluticns Private Limited))

Firm Registration No.:105047wW (CIM: UZ7300DL2017PLC3I248432)
/__é \,70"/\
Ananthakrishnan Gavindan Ravikant Uppal Kannabifan Rajagopal Suraj Agrawal
Parkaier Managing Director ‘Whole-time Director & Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Membership Na: 205216 DIN: 0002597¢ DIN: 00135666 Membership No: 43787
Place: Hyderabad Place: Dethi Flace: Bangalore Place: Delta

Date: June 20, 2025 Date: June 26, 2025 Date: June 20, 7025 Date: June 20, 2025




Stee! Infra Solutions Company Limited

{Formerly known as "Steel Infra Soluticns Company Private Limited', priar to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited?)
Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the vear ended March 31, 2025

{All Amaount in INR Miliions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash fiow from operating activities
Profit before tax 435.83 323.80
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expanses 81,37 53.64
Share-based payments Lo employces 1.89 0.22
Allowance for expected credit loss G.14 -
Finance cost on borrowangs other than an lease liabilities 162,62 131.98
Finance cost on lease Liabilities 15.76 3.1
interest incende on fixed deposits designated as amortized cost {25.50) {21.75)
Interest income on other financial assets at amortised cost {0.47) (0.25)
Subsidy income- {1.20y (1.20)
Gain on termination of lease contracts (9.27) -
Loss an unrealised foreign exchange transactions {net) 0.09 =
Loss on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment {net) - 0.31
Operating profit/loss before changes in operating asseis and liabilities 670.32 490,16
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in trade payables 508.8% 26,82
Increase in other liabilities (current and non-current) 142,54 137.40
Increase in provisians (current and non-current) 3.57 372
Decrease/ {Increase) in inventories [467.86) 51.00
Decrease/ {Increase) in trade receivables (380.54) 62.38
Decrease/ (Increase) i other financial assets ( current and nen-current) 416.7¢ {406.98)
increase in other current assets (88.77) {40.21)
Cash generated from cperations 504,85 324,29
income tax paid {116.39) (58.0%)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 788,46 266.20
Cash flow from investing activitias
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (233.73) (213.76)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.62
Fixed/restricted deposits with banks placed (net) {48.14) {111.93)
Interest received 24.76 20,08
Net cash flows from / {used in} investing activities (B) (307.11) (305.02)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital net of acquisition cost - 154.62
Dividend Paid 140.60) -
Repaymernits of long term borrowings {net} {2.54) {14.94)
Repayments of short term borrowings (net) (200.35) {51.70)
Interest paid and other borrowing costs (159.99) {132.91)
Principal paid on lease liabilities (12.66) {3.38)
Interest paid on tease liabilities (15.76) {3.41)
Net cash flows from / {used in) financing activities (B) {431.90} 48.26
Net increase/ (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 43.45 .44
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14.85 5.49
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 64.30 14.85
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivaients as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following (Refer note 10)
Balances with banks:
In current accounts 61.72 1.26
Deposits with maturity of kess than 3 months 2.50 3.50
Cash on hang 0.08 0.09
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 64,30 14.85
See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-59
The accosnpanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
For M S KA & Assaciates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited
Firmn Registration No.:105047W {Formerly known as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as ‘Steel
Infra Solutiens Private Limited?)
[Ci?PLC324842] )
Tﬁ ! ) 6\97/\
Andhthdkrishnan Gevindan leelit Uppal Kannabiran Raj Suraj Agrawal
Partner Managing Director whale-time Di Company Secretacy
Chief Fina
Membership No: 205226 DIN: 00025970 DIN: 00135666 Membership No: 43787

Place: Hyderabad
Cate: June 20, 2025

Place: Delhi Place: Bangalore lace: Deihi
Date: June 20, 2025 Cale: June 20, 2025 Date! June 20, 2025



Steel Infra Sefutions Company Limited

{Formerly known as 'Stesl Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to thak as "Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited)

s tidated of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(ALl Amount in INR Millions, unless atherwise stated)
{A) Equity share capital
Fully paid equity shares of INR 10 each

For the year anded As at March 31, 2028

Equity shares of INR 19 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance as at Aprii 01, 2024

Changes in Equity Share Capital dua to pricr period errors
Restated balance as at April 91, 2024

Changes in equity share capital dunng the current year
Balance as at March 31, 2025

For the year ended As at March 31, 2024

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and Fully paid
Balance as ai April 91, 2023

Changes in Equity Share Capitai due to prior periad ermrors
Restated balance as at April 91, 2023

Changes In equity share capital during the current year
Balance a5 at March 31, 2024

Partly paid equity shares of INR 10 each

For the year ended As at

March 31, 2025

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance as at April 0§, 2024

Changes {n equity share capital during the current year
Balance as at March 31, 2025

For the year ended As at

March 31,2024

Equity shares of INR 10 each ssued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance as at April 01, 2023

Changes in equity share capital during the cuent year

As at
March 31, 2025
Ho. of sharas Amount
4,06,03,942 406.04
4,06,03,942 406.04
4,06,03,942 406,04
As at
March 51, 2024
No. of shares Amaunk
3,57,55,829 357.56
3,57,35,829 357.56
48,48,113 48.48
4,06,03,542 406.04
As ab
March 31, 2025
No. of shares Amount
As at
March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount
30,35,720 .7
{30,35,720) 9.71)

<< Intentfonally Left Blank »>»



Steal infra Solutions Company Limited

{Formerly known as 'Steel [nfra Salutions Company Private Limited', prier to that as 'Steel Infra Selutions Private Limited)

Consolidated Stat=ment of changes in equity for the year ended March 11, 2025
{AlE Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)
{B) Cther equity

For the year ended March 31, 2028

Particulars Reserve and Surplus Total
Securities Emplayee stock Retained Re-measurement gains/
Premium optien autstanding Earnings (losses) on defined
benefit plans
Balance as at Aprii 01, 2624 T79.79 0.73 692.95 2.69 1,476.20]
Changes in accounting policy or prior periad = = k S =
errors
Restated balance as at April 01, 2024 775.79 2,73 692.99| 2.69 1,476.20
Profit for the year - - 379,62 - 329.62|
Other comprehensive income 3 - - 0.80 0.80)
Total Comprehensive Income - - 329.52 0.80 330.42
'El‘lpluyee stock option exg S 1.89 - 2 1.89]
Security premium on issue of equity shares - - . £ =
Dividend paid during the year - - (40.80) - {40.60)
[Bsfance as at March 31, 2025 774.79 2.62 922 .01 31.49 1,767.91
For the year ended Mareh 31, 1024
Reserve and Surplus
Securities Employee stock Retained Re-measurement gains/
Particulars Premium option outstanding Earnings (fostes} on defined Total
benefit plans
Balance as at April 01, 2023 563.94 0.51 444,54 Q.18 1,009.17,
Changes in accourting policy or prier padod - = - - -
jerrors
{Balance as at March 31, 20724 563.94 0.51 444,54 0.18 1,009.17|
Profit for the year | - 24B.45) - 248.45
Other comprehensive income | - - .51 2.51)
Total Comprehensive fncome - = 248.45| = 1.51 - 250.96
Employee stock option expense - .22 R 0.22
Security premium on issue of equity shares | 215.85 - - 215.585

Balance as at As atMarch 21, 2024 ! 779.78] 0.73 692.89 2.6 1,476.20
See accompanying notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-59
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consclidated Financial Statements,
As perour repart of even date
For MS KA & Associates Far and on behalf o! the Board of Directars of
Chastered Accountants Steel infra Solutians Company Limited

Firm Reghbration No.:105047W
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{CIN: UZ7300DL2017PLC324842)
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Steel Infra Sclutions Company Limited
(Formerly known as "Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limiled')

Hotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in INR Midiions, unless otherwise stated)

1 General Information
Steel Infra Sojutions Company Limited (Fermerly known as Steel infra Solutions Company Private Limited', pricr to thal as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited'}
{the Company™/ "Holding Company”/ “the Parent™} {CiN: UZ73000L201 7PLC324842) together with its subsidiary {collectively, “the Group™). The Pacent and its
subsidiary have been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies act, 2013 on October 1Z, 2017 and is having Its registered and principal office of
business is at B-66, Ground Fleor, Hauz Khas, New Deihi, 110014,

The Company has changed its name from ~ Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited” to "Steel Infra Selutions Company Private Limited™ on March 27, 2025 and
subsequently the Company has converted itsell into unlisted public Comnpany with effect from April 23, 2025. Cansequently, the name was changed to Steel
Infra Solutions Company Limited” fram “Steel Infra Solutions Company Frivale Limited”,

The Group is primarily engaged in tha business of providing end te end steel based solutions covering complete value chain of activities ranging from design,
engineening, fabnicatien, instaliation at site and project management for the diverse infrastruciural projects. The fabrication facilities of the Company area
located at Bhilai - Unit | DTIC Lease Rent for Plant 1, Plat No, 31, Light Industrial Area, Bhilai ; Unit | Annexe : Kanpur Steel Engg Works, Plot No. 30-C, Light
Industrial Area, Bhital, ; Unit E : Adarsh Udyag, Plot No. 18-A, Light Industrial Area, Bhilai, Chhattisgarh, Pin » 4%0026; Unit Il : DTIC Lease Rent Plant Il , Plot
No. 22/C, Heavy Industria! Area, Bhilal, Chhattisgarh, Pin - 4%0026; Unit Il Annexe : Anand Sales, 22-E, HIA Hathihoj, Bhitai Chhattisgarh, Pin - 490026; Lait IV :
Amit Engineering, Plot No. 62, Industral Estate, Nandini Road Bhilai Pin - 450026; Yadodara Plant, Ground Fleor Piot No. 101, 102, 103, 96, 97, 98 Suncity
[ndustrial Park, Hirzapur GIDC Savli, Vadodara, Gujarat - 391520; Sales and Marketing offices at Chennai ; Mumbai ; Bangalore ; Hyderabad.

The Baard of Directors approved the Fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 and authorised for issue on June 20, 2025,

2 summary of material accounting pelicies
These notes provide a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this Consolidated financial statement, These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.01 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accaunting Standards {ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 (the "Act"} read with the Compaites (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant crovisions of e Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied 1o il the years presented unless otherwise siated.
(b) Basis of measurement
The financial stalements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the following material items that have been
reasured at fair value or revalued value as required by retevant Ind A%:-
i) Certaw financial assets and liabilities measured at {air value {refer accounting policy on financial instruments)
ji) Share based payment transactions
The group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue Lo operate as a goind concern.

(€] Classification between Current and Non-current
The group presents assets and tabilities in the balance sheet based on current! noa-current classification. An asset is treated as cur:
1. Expecied to be realised or intended Lo be sold or consumed 1n normal operating cycle
ii. Held primarity for the purpose of trading
iil. Expected to be realized witlhan twelve months after the reporting period, of
iv. Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used 1o settle a llaLiitiLy for at teast tweive months after 1he (eporting period
All ather assets are classificd as non-current.

nt when it

A liability 15 current whan:

& It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

il |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

i IE is due to be settled within twelve manths afler Lhe reporting period, or

iv. There is no unconditional nght ta defer the settlement of the liabillly for at least twelve months afler Lhe reparting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

The group classfiies all ether Liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and Habilities.

The operating cycle is the time between Uhe acquisition of assets for processing and their realisztion 1 cash and cash equivalents. The group has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

{d) Use of estimatos
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires the Management to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expensas for the year and disclosures of contingent
liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assuinptions used in the acgrouping financial statements are based upon the Management’s
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.




Steel Infra Selutions Company Limited
[Formeriy known as Steel infra Selutions Company Private Limited', prior Lo that as 'Skeel Infra Solutions Private Limited')

Hates forming part of the Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{demount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.c2

2.03

2.04

Z.05

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periadic basis. Revisions to accounling estimales, if any, are recagnized in the year in which the
estimales are revised and In any future years affected.

Property, plant and squipmant

items of property, plant and equipment are initlally recognized 2t cost. Tha cost inctudos the purchasa price, directiy aliribulable costs and the
estimated present value of any future unavaldable costs of dismantiing and removing items. Froehold land i measured at historlcal cost and Is nat
depreciated

Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 1s prabable that future
ecanomic benefits associated wilh the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can “be measured refiably. The carrying amount of any
companent accounted for as a separale asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depretiation methods, estimatad useful hves.
The group depreciates properly, plant and equipment over their estimalted useful Lives using the straight line methoed. The estinated useful lives of
assels are as follows:

Assel categories Useful life in years
Building 30
Plant & Machinery 15
Furniture apd fixtures 10
Eiectrical Installations 10
Office equipmont’s 5
Vehicies &

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful Life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being depreciited over useful Lives different
from the prescribed useful lives under Schedule Il te the Companies Act, 2013, Mahagement believes tnat such estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approsimation of the penod over which the assets are likely to be used. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the
asset,

Depreciation an addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction
from property plant and equipment is previded up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and Losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Gther [icome’.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at sach financlal year end and adjusted prospectively, at appropriate.
Other Intangible Assets
Intangible assels are staled at acquisition cost, net of accumulated 2rostization.

Externilly acquired intangible agsets are initially recognised al cost and subsequently ainorsised o 2 straight-line basis over their useful economic tives.
The estimated wseful lives of inlangible assets are as follows

Intangible assets Useful life

Lomputer software i years

s intangible asset is derecognised upen disposal {i.e., at the date the recipient obtains contyot) or when no fulure economic b i5 are expected from
its use o disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset jcalculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying ameunt of the assat) is included i the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent Uabilities Tor goods and services provided to the group prior to the ead of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within €-120 days of recognition. Trade and other payabies are presented as current Liabilities unbess payment is not due
within 12 months afier the reporting period.

Revenue from contract with customer

The group manufactures/ trades and sells a range of Fabricated Steel Structures. Revenue from contracts with cuslomers nvalving sa.e of Lhese prodixts
is recagnized at a point in time when control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilied obligation that could affect the cuslomer’s
acceptance of Lhe products.

The group has objective evidence that all criterion for acceptance has been satisfied.




Steel Infra Soiutions Company Limited
{Formerly known as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited?)

Hotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{&mount in INR Millions, unless otherwise staled)
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Sale of goads

Sale af Fabricated Steel Structures

The majority of the group's revenue i derived from selling of Fabricated Steel structures with revenue recogrmsed 2t a point in time when control af the
goads has transferred 1o the customer. This is generally, when the goods are delivered to the customer. However, there are various shipment / delivery
terms, where, control might also be transferred whan deliverad as per the specilic termas of the contract with a customer. There is limited judgement
needed in idenlifying the point control passes once physical delivery of the products to the agreed [ocation has cccurred, the group has no longer has
physical possessicn, usually wiil have a present right to payment and retainsnone of the significant risks and rewards of the goods in question.

The group considers, whether there are other promises in the contragt In which there are separate performance abiigations, to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the group considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, non-cash conskleration, and consideration payable to the customer {if any).

Sale of Services

{1) Rendering of inslatlation Services

The group Renders Instatiation services with revenue recognised lypically on an over time basis. This is because the services created have no allernative
usa for the group geoupand the contracts would require payment to be recemved for the time and effort spent by the group on progressing the contracts
in the event of the customer cancelling the contract pnor to completicn éor any reason other than the graup's failure to perform its cbligations under the
contract. Cn partially complete contracts, the group recognises revenue based on stage of completion of the project which is estimated by comparing
the quantity instaliation on the preject with the quantity to be installed {i.e. 2n input based method).

Other Operating Revenue

Interest Income

For alt debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest incoi.e is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EWR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated fiture cash payments of receipts ovar the expecied life of the financial
Instrument or a shorer per o, where appropriate, to the gross carying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financiai lability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financiat
instrument (for example, prepayment, extensicn, call and similar oplions) but does nat consider the expected credit losses, interest income is included
in other income in the Statement of Profit and Lass.

Practical exemplions

The grouphas taken advantage of the practical exemptions:

{i) Not to account for significant financing compenents where the time difference between receiving consideration and transfereing control of goods (or
sarvices) Lo its custemer is one year or less; and

{ii} Expense the incremental costs of ebtaimng a contract when the amortisation period of the asset olerwise recognised would have been ane year or
less.

Contract Balances

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration 1 exchange for goods or services transiered o the custemer. if the grouppericrms by transferring goods or
services ta a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset 1s recognised for the earned consideration that

35 conditional. A receivables represents the group s right te an amount of consideration that is unconditio

Contract Linbility

A contract liability is the obligaticn te transfer goeds or services to a customer for which the grouphas received consideration {or an amaunt of
consideralion is due} from the customer. if a customer pays consideration before the grouptransfars gaods or services to the cuslemier, a contract
Liabitity 1s recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is eartier). Contiact liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
groupperforms under the contract

Trade Receivable
A trade receivable is recognised if an amouni of consideration that is unconditional {i.e., only the passage of 1ime is required before payment of the
consideration is dug).

Government grants

Government granis are recognized when thore is reasonabie assuraoce thal Lhe grant will be received and all allached conditions for receiving such graat
have been and will be fulfilled,

Government grants related to asset are recognized as deferred income and charged to Statement af Frofit and Loss on & systemati: basis over expected
useful life of the related asset.

Government grants are recegnized in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over Lhe period in which group recognizes as expenses the
refated costs for which the grants are intended to cornpensate. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses already incurred are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Less in the peried In which they become receivable.

All Non-monetary grants received are recognized for both asset and grant at nominal vatue.

Tie benefit of 2 goverament (an at a rate befow the market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, and s measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based an prevailing market interest rates.




Staal infra Solutions Company Limitad
{Formarly known as ‘Steel Infra Sclutions Company Privale Limiled', prier to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited')

Hotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statgmants for the year ended iarch 31, 2025
{Amount 1n 1HR Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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Taxas
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are fncluded ih the determination of the net profit or loss for the year.

Current income tax

Cursent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be pald o or racovered from the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compite the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the
groupoperates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to jtems recognised autside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in
equity}. Current tax items are recognised in correlation te the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in 2quity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respact to situatiens in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and coasiders
whather it is probable that a tazation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The groupreflects the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain
tax treatment by using either most Likely method or expected value methed, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the teatment.

Deferrad tax

Dederred taxes arising from deductible and taxable temporary differences between the tax base of assels and liabilities and their carrying amount in the
books of account are recagnized using substantively enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply to taxable income in the periods/years in which the
temporary differences are expected to be received or settlad.

Deferred tax asset are racognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al each reporling date and reduced to the extent that it is
na lenger probable that sufficient 1axable profit will be available to aliow ali or part of the deferred income tax assets 16 be utilizad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the group has a legally enfarceable right to do the same,
Current and deferred tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it retates to stems recagnised in olher comprehensive
income or directly in equity. |n this case, the tax is also recognised in ather comprehensive income or directiy in equity, respectively.

Leases

The group 25 a lessee

At the commencement date of the leass, the grouprecoghises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments 1o be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including In substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives recelvable, vanable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected Lo be pald under residual value guarantees. The lease paynients also include the exercise price
of & purchase option reasonably certain Lo be exercised by the groupand payments of penalties for lerminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
groupexercising the cpticn to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rale are recognised as expenses {unless they are
incurred to produce invenlones) in the perioc in which the event or cendition that triggers the payment accurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the groupuses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement dile because Lbe inlerest
rale implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabitities is increased to reflect the accretion
of inferest and reduced for the lease payments made. ln addition, the carrying ameunt of lease Uabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the iease termy, a change in the lease payments (e g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease paymenls) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The group recogises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {Le., the date the underlying asset & available for use). Right-of-use
assels are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciztion and impainnent losses, and adjusted for any reraeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease lizhilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or belore the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Shart-term leases and leases of lowsvalue assets

Tiwe groupapplies the short-term lease recognition exemplion 1o its short-terin leases of equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease tenin of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases ol low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straxght-line over the lease term,
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2.9

2.10

Tnveniories

Basis of Valuation

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value alter providing cost of chsolescence, if any, However, materials and other items held for
use in the production of inveatories are not writken down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorperated are expected to be sold
at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an itemvby-item basis.

Methed of Valuation:
Cost of raw materials has been determined by using maving welghted average cost method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (ather than
those subsequently zecoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventorias fo their present location and condition,

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct tabour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads and excise duty as
applicable.

Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facitities, Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis,

Net realizable valve is the estimated selling price in the erdinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary Lo
make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an Indication Lhat an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when anaual

impairment testing for an asset s required, the groupestimates the asset's recaverable amount. An asset’s recoverable anount is 1he higher of an assal's
or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) Tair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an inuividual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflews that are largely independent of thase from other assets or greups of asseis. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable arnount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverabie amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimaled future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markat
assessments of the time value of monoy and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent, market transactions are
used. These ¢

mittiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companics or other available fair value indicators

taken nto account. If no such ransactions can be identilied, an appropriate valuation mode

ulations are corroborated by valuation

mpairment charges are included in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent they reverse gams previously recognised in other camprenensive

income. An wnpairment loss recognised for goadwill is not reversed.
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Provisions and contingent Habilitiss

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obiigation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of rescurtes embodying economic
benefils will be required Lo settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the ebligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of Lhe expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date.

I¥ the effect of the time value of money is matenal, previsions are discounted UsINg a Current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropnate, the risks
specific 1o the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A passible abligation arising from past events and whase existence will be confirmed only by the accurrence or pon-occurrence of one oF mareuncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the group, or a present ehligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because

{1} it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying ecenomic benafits will be required to settle the ghiigation, or

{il) the amount af the chligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The groupdoes not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence and other required disclostires in notes to the Consolidated financial

st unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remate.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenis includes cash {n hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investmenis with original maturities of
three months or less.

Financlal fnstruments
& financial instrumant 1s any centract Lhat gives rlie 1w a financial a3set of one entity and & fnanclat Uability of aquily Instrument 6f anathier antity.

Financial assets

Inttial recagnition and measuremant

Financial assets are classified, al initfal recogmition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value Wreugh oLher comprehensive Income (OC1),
and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual Cash ow characteristics and the group’s Lusiness
model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not conlain a significant financing component or for which the yrouphas
applied the practical expedient, the groupinitially measures a financial asset at #s fair value plus, in the case of a financial assal not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade rece vables that do not contain a signif icant Mnancing component or for which the grouphas applied the
praclical expedient are measured at Lhe transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer ta Lhe accounting pelicies in Revenue from contracts with
customers.

In order for a financial asset te be classified and measurad at amortised cost er falr vaiue through OCi, it nceds to give rise to cash flows that are "solely
payments of principal and interest {SPP[)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred Lo as the SP¥I Lest and is performed at an
instrument Tevel. Financial assets willy cash flows that are not SPF[ are classiffed and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespactive of the
business model.

The group's business model for managing financial agssets refers Lo haw jt manages its financial assets in order to generale cash flows. The business mode
determines whether cash flows will resolt from collecting contractual cash flaws, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assels clasalied and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model wath the objeclive to hald hinancial assets in order to collect contractual cash fiows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OC1 are held wilhin a business model with the objective of bolh bolaing to collect
contractual cash Mlows and selling,

Subsequent measurement

For purpases of subsequent measlrement, financiat assets are classified in following categeries.
a} at amortized cost; or

b} at Fair Value Lhrough Other Cormprehensive Income (FYTOCH}; or

<) at Fair Value through Profit and Loss {FVTPL},

Financial assets at amartised cost : A ‘(inancial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost i bolh the foltowing conditions are met:

a} The asset 15 held within a business model whose objeclive is to hold assets far collecling contractual cash flows, and

4) Contractual Lerms of Lhe asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amouni outstanding,

This categury is the mast relevant to the group. After initiul measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measwed zt amoruised cost using the
effective inlerest rate {EIR) method. Amortisad cost is calculated by taking inta account any discount or pramium on acquisition and Toes or costs that
are an integral parl of the EIR. The £IR amortisation is included in other incame in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recogoised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivabies and loans 1o related parties
included under ather financial assets.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOL): A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FYTOCH if bath of the foilowing criteria are met:
(2)The objective of the business model is achieved bolh by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and (b)The asset's
contractual cash flows reprasent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FYTGCI category are mieasured initiatly as well as at each reporting date at fair value. For Debt instruments, at fair
value through OCl, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses ar reversals are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
and computed in the same manner as for financiaw assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recegnised in OCI.

Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equily to prefit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL): Financial assets in this category are these that are heid for trading and have bean either designatad by
managernent upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under ind A5 109 i.e. they do not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortised cost or FyOCl.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Equity instruments: Equity instruments ssued by the groupare recognised at Lhe proceeds received, net of direct jssue costs, The groupclassifies a
financial instrument fssued by it as equity instrument only If below conditions are met:

The instrument includes no contractual sbligation to deliver cash or ancther financial asset o angthier entity. Nor it inciudes any obligation to exchange
financial assets or financial labilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer,

1§ the instrument will, or may, be settled in the group’s own equity instruments, It is non-derivative instrument that includes no contractualobligation for
the graupto deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments. If the instrument is derivative, then it should be settled oply by the
groupgxchanging a fixed amount of Gash or ancther financial asset for a fixed number of its awn equity instruments.

All other instruments are classified as financial Uabilities and accounted for using ihe accounting policy applicable to the financial tiabilities.

Equity instrumants included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Impaiment of financial assets
The grouprecognises an allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss,

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractial cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the groupexpects ta
receive, discounted at an approximaticn of the original effective interest rate. The expecied cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has
not been a significant increase in ¢redit, risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the aext 12-months {a 12-menth ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
Tecognition, a loss allowance is required for credit Lossas expected aver the remaining life of the expasure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
tifetiena ECL),

For trade receivables and contract assets, the graupapplies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the groupdoas not Lrack changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a ioss allowance based on tifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The grouphas established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for farward-looking factors specific ta the debtors and the economic environment.

The groupcansiders a financial asset in default wien contractual payments are 30 days past due, However, in certain cases, the groupmay atso consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external informaticn indicates that the groupis untikely to receive the cutstanding contraciuat amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonabie expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Expected credit loss {ECL} impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the pericd/year is recognized as income/expense in the Statement
of Prafit and Loss. In balance shest expected credit loss (ECL) for financial assets measured at amortized cost is presented as an allowancea, i.e. as an
integral part of the measurement of those assels in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the et carning amount. Until the asset meets write off
criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.,

Derecognition of financial assets

A financiat asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset ar part of a groupef similar financisl assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed
from the group’s consotidated batance sheet] when:

aJThe rights ta receive cash flows fram the asset have expired, ar

bjThe grouphas transferred its rights to receive cash Tlows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withaut
material delay to a third party under a ‘passsthrough’ arrangement: and either the grouphas transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, of the grouphas neither ransierred nar retamed substantially all the risks and rewards of the assal, but has transferred coatrol of the assel

Financial liabilities
Initia! recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amer tized cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabRities are recognized initially at fair value and, i the case of borrowings and payables, net of diractly attributable transaction costs
Subsequent measurement

For purpases of subsequent measurement, finascial assets are <lassified in following calegories

a} at amoriized cost; or

b} at Fair Yalue through Othor Comprehensive Income (FYTOCI I or

<) at Fair Yalue through Profit and Loss {FVTPL).

The classification depends on the entity's business model far managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash Aows.

Firancial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category mest ralevant to the group. Alter initial recognition, intefest-bearing loans and borrowings measured at amertised cost are
subsequently measured at amartized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are Fecognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the labilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortized cost is calculaled by taking inta account any discount or premium en acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part af the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Prafit and Loss

Finandial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial Liabitities held for trading and financial 1iabilities designated upon initiat

recognition as at fair valug through profit and ioss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for Lhe purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category alse includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the greupthat are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relaticnships as defined by ind AS 108,
Separated embedded derivatives are alse classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effectiva hedging instruinents.

Financial labikities dasignated upon initfal recognition at fair vatue through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognitign, and
only if the criteria in ind AS 109 are satisfied. For Habllities designated as FYTPL, fair value gains/ losses attibutable to changes i1 own credit Hsk are
recogaised in QCL These gams/ losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the groupmay transfer the cumadative gain or less
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recogaised in the stalement of profit and less. The grouphas nat designated any
financial liability as at fair vatue through profit or loss.

)
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Derecognition

A l'l'nangclal liakility 3 derecagnized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liabfiity is
repiaced by another irom the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Lability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or madificaiion is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in Lhe respective
carrying amounts is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

ffsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabitities are offsét and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is currently an enforcable legal right to offset the
recegnized amounts and there is an intenticn te settle on a net basis of realize the asset and settle the liability smultaneously.

Employee Benefits

Shart-term obligations

Gther employee banefits that are expected to be settled whotly within 12 menths after the end of the reporting periad are treated as short-term
employee benefits and presented as current liabilities. The grouprecognises expected cast of shart-term employee benefit as an expense, when an
employee rendars ihe related service.

Giher long-term employee benz{it ohligations

Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution tewards provident fund is madz to the regulatory autherities, where the group has no further obligations. Such benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the group does not carry any further obligations, apari from the contributions made on a monthly basis
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Empicyee’s State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made to the regulatory authorities, where the group has
no further obtigations. Such benafits are classified as Defined Contribiution Schemes as the group does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributicns made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefik scheme

Defined benefit scheme surpluses and deficits are measured at:

(i} The fair value of plan assets at the reporting date; less

{ii} Plan | labilities calcutated using the projected unit credit method discounted to its present value using yields available an government bonds thit have
maturity dates approximating [o the terms of the liabllities and are denominated in the same currency as the post-employinent benefit obii
{iii} The effect of minimum funding requirements agreed with scheme trustees.

ons; less

Remeasurements of the net defined obligation are recoghized directly within equity. The remeascroments include:
(i} Actuarial gains and losses,

(it} Return on plan assats (iiterest exclusiv
(i) Any asset ceiling effects {interest exclusive).

Service costs are recognised in profit or Loss and 1nclude current and past service costs as well as gains and losses en curtailments.

Net interest expense (inceme) is recagnised in profit or loss, and is calculated by applying the discount rate used Lo measure the defined benetil
obliga (asset) at the beginning of the annual period to the balance of the net defined benefit ebligation (asset), considering the effects of
contributions and benefit payments during the period.

Gains or losses arising froim changes to scheme benefits er scheme curtailisent are recognised innediately in prafit ar loss

Settlements of defined benef®t schemes are recognised in the perod in which the settlement accurs.
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Share-based payments

The cost of equily-settled transactions is determined by the fair vatue at the date when Lie grant is made using an appropriate valuation modsl. That
cost is recognised, together with a comrespanding increass in share options outstanding account in equity, ever tie period in which the performance
and/er service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settied transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent ta which the vesiing period has expired and the group’s best estimata of the number of equity
instruments that wiil ultimately vest. The expease or credit in the Statemeat of Profit and Loss far a period represants the movement 1 cumidative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken inte account when determining the grant date Fair vaiue of awards, but the likelibood of
the conditions being met is assessed as part of the group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to 2n award, but without an associated service
requireent, are considered 16 be non-vesting cenditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and iead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.No expense 1s recegnised lor awards that da not ultimately vest
because non-masket performance and/or service conditions have not been met, Where awards include a mariet or nonsvesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or nonvvesting condition is satisfied, provided that ail other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Ho expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimatety vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where
awards include 3 market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whelher the market or non-vesting cendition is
satisfied, providad that all olber performance and/er service canditions are satisfied,

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified award,
provided the criginal vesting terms of the award are met. An additienal expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recegnised for any
modification that inreases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately thraugh profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Other employee benefits that are not expected to be settiod wholly within 12 menths aiter the end of the reparting periad are presenLed as non-current
liabitities (the ebligations are presenled as current Giabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an uncondizional right ta defer the
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date} and calculated using the projected unit credit method and then discounted using yields
available on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the expected rematning period 10 seitlement and are denominated in the same
currency as the post-employment benefit obligations, Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the Slateinent of Profit and Loss.

5 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the periad/year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares autstanding during the period/year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the group's earnings per share is tae net profit and toss
for the period/year after decucting preference dividends and apy attributable tax Lhereto for the period/year. The woighted aver=ge number of equity
shares outstanding during the period/year and far all the periods/years presented is adjusted {or events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion
of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstandinz, without 2 corresponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, Ui net profit and loss for the period/year altributable 1o equiy share
average number of shares outslanding during the year is adjusled for the effects of all dilutive potential equily shares.

ders and the we

.16 Segment Reporting

Operaling segments are reporied in 2 manner censistent with the Internal reperting provided to the dyief operating decision maker, The Board of
directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of making decisians about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit and loss and s measured consiste
Stateinents.

atly with profit and loss in the Summary

The group’s operations predominantly retate to Manufacturing & Saie of fabricated steel Structures. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews
the eperations of the groupas ohe operating segment, Hence no separate segment [nformation has bean lurnished herewith.

~

Rounding off amounts
All anounts disclosed in financial stalements and nates have been rounded off Lo the nearest millions as per requirement of Schedule I of the Act, unless
otherwise stated,

potia
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2.18 Events after Ui reporting period

If the group receivas Information after the reperting petlod, but priar to the date when the tinancial statvinents are approved for isstig, about conditions
hat existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess whether the information atfects the amounts that it 1ecognises in its Consolidated financial
statements. The groupwill adjust the amounts recognised in its Consolidated financial staterents to reflect any adjusting avents after the reporting
peried and updale the disclosures that relate ta those conditions in light of the new information. For nen-adjusting events after the reporting period, the
groupwill not change the amcunts recognised in its Consalidated fnancial statements, but will disclose the nature of the non adjusting event and an
estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

2.1% Dividends

Dividends are recognised when thy become legally payable, in the case of interim dividends 1o equity shareholders, this is when deciared by the
directors. In the case of final dividends, this 1s when approved by the sharehalders at the annuat general meeting,

2.20 Borrowing costs

.

Bormowing costs are capitalised, when they are direcily attributable to the scquisition, contribution or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to ger ready for iLs intended use or sale (quialifying assat). All other borrowings casts are expensed in the pericd in which they
oocur. Borrewing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the horrawing of funds.

Foreigh currency transackions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recarded by applying to the foreign currency amaung the exchange rale between the
functional turrency and the foreign cutrency at the date of the Lransaction, Gains/losses arfsing out of fluctuation in farelgn exchange rate batween e
transaction date and settlement date are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Al monetary assets and liabiliLies in foreign currencies are restated at the perfod end at the exchange rale prevailing at the period end and the exchange
differences are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Mon-raenstary #ems that are measured at historical cost in a foreiga currency are translated uelig the exchange rates at the dates of the snitial
Lransactions.Non-nionetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value 1s
determined. The gain or loss ar Ising on transtation of non-manetary items measured at faie value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change In fair value of the item (i-e., translation differences on items whose tair value gain or loss is Tecognised in QCI or profit or foss are also
recogaised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

3 Material accounting Judgments, ostimates and assumptions

{a)

{B)

()

{d}

{e)

The preparation of Financial Information requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptiuas that affect the teporied amounts of
revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities, and the acgrouping disclosures, and tie disclosure of contingent liabilities Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates couid result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the <arryig smount of assets or Uabililies affected in future
periods/years

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions cancerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the perfed/year end dale, that fave a sighificant risk of
Causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year, ace described below, The group and its

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires detenmination of the most appropriate valuation model, wiuch is dependant on the
terms and canditions of the grant. This estimate also requires deter mination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model includitg the
expecied life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about thens,

The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value Ter share-based payinent transactions are disclased, refer Note 35.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for ynused tax losses to the extert that It is probabta at Laxable prafit will be availably againsl which the logsas <an
be utilized, Significant management judgment is required to deterinine the amaunt of deferred Lax assets that can be recugniced, based upen the Likely
Liming and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax plarming strategies.

The graupneither have any taxable temporary difference ner any tax Plaining opportunities available Lhat coutd parity suppait the recognition of these
losses a3 deferred tax assets. On this basis, the grouphas deterinined that it cannot recognize delerred tax assets on the tax (osses carriad forward except.
for the unabsorbed depreciation. Refer Note 32.

Defined benefit plans {gratuity benefits and cumpensaled absences)
The cost of the defined benerit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obtigation are deterimined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial

valuatian involves making various assumptions that iay differ fram actual developments in the future. These include the cetermination of the discouat
rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invelved in the valuation and its lang-terin natire, 2 defincd benafit obligation
Is highly sensitive to changas in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject ta <hange is the discount rate. In deternyining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in idha, the management

censiders the interest rates of government, bonds wiare remaining maturity of such bond carrespond to expected term of defined benafil abligation.

The martaiity rate is based an publicly available mortality tabies. Those mortality tables tend ta change only at interval in response to cemographic
changes. Future salary increases and 2ratuity increases are based on expected future inflalisn rates.
For details refer Note 34.

Fair valua measurement

In measuring the fair value of certain assets and Liabilities for financial reporting purpose, the groupuses market obsarvable data to the exlent available.
Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the groupengages third party qualified valuers to establish appropriate valuation techaiques and inputs to
the medel, The inputs ta tese models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not. feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. iudgments include consideralians of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changas in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments For details refer Note 41

Determining the lease Lerm of contracts with renewal and termination cptians




Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited
{Formerly known as Steel Infra Selutions Company Private Limited’, prior to that as ‘Steel Infra Sulutions Private Limited}

Hates forming part of the Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount In JNR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

i)

In determining the lease terin, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option or
not exercise a termination opticn. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
ceitain Lo be extended {or not terminated}. Most extension options in office leases have been included in the lease liabitity, because the groupcoutd not
replace the assets without signilicant cost or business disruption.

The lease terin is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or aot exercised) or the groupbecomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise} it. The
assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant evant or a significant change in circumstances oceurs, which affects this assessment,
and that is within the conlrol of the lessee. Estimates and judgements are continvally evaluated, They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of fulure events that may have a financial inpact on the groupand that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Dapreciation/ amortization and useful lives of preperty plant and equipment/ intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment/ intapgible #ssets are depreciated/ amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated
residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amounl of
depreciation / amortization to be recorded during any reperting period, The useful lives and residual values are based on the group's historical
experience with similar assets and take inte account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periads is revised if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Provision for expected credit iosses (ECL's) of trade receivables

The greupuses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for its customer segments that
have similar loss patterns. The provisian matrix is initially based on the group's histurical chserved default rates. At every reporting date, the historicai
observed default rates are updaied and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions, The group’s historicat credit loss experience and forecast of econamic conditions may also not be
representative of customer's actual default in the future

4 Standards {including amendments) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Aflairs {“"MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing slandards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind A5 116 - Leases, telating to sale and
leaseback transactions, not applicable to the groupw.e.f. April 1, 2024

<<hntentionally Left Bank>>
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Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited
(Formerty known as "Steel Infra Seolutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as 'Stee! Infra Solutions Private Limited')

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All Amount in INR Miltions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
7 Other financial assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-Current (Unsecured, considered good}
Security Deposits 21.37 17.66
Deposit with banks with original maturity for more than 12 months * 387.89 341,22
409.06 358.88
MNotes:
a) “The restrictions are primarily on account of bank balances held as margin money deposits against guarantees.
b) Refer Note 41 for information about the Group's exposure to financial risks.
As at As at
8 lnventories March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap valued at net realisable
value)
Raw material 526.23 197.39
Work tn progress 342.87 234,49
Scrap 1.25 0.82
Store and spares parts 1534.07 123.86
1,024.42 556.56

Refer Note 19 for information on inventory pledged as security by the Group.

<<[ntentionally Leit Blank>>




Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited
{Formerly known as ‘Steel Infra Selutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutlons Private Limited')

Netes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 3%, 2025
{Adl Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise staled)

9 Trade receivable

Asat As at,
March 31, 2025 March 31, 7024
Receivable fram contract with customer - 1,355.99 975.53
billed
£,355,99 $75.53
Break-up of security details
Secured, considered good 5 -
Unsecured
-Considered good 1,355.85 975.53
~Considered doubtful L =
Receivables which have significant Increase 0.14 -
in Credit Risk
Receivables credit impaired . g
1,355.99 §75.53
Allowance for bad and doubiful debts
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured
=Considered good 3 &
-Considered doubifid
Recervables which have significant increase 0.14
in Credit Risk
Receivables credik impaired -
0.14
Total Trade Recevable 1,355.85 975.53

5,01 Motes:
a) Ng trade receivables are due from directors or other of ficers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person er firms or private companies in which any
director is a partner, a director or a member

b) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 0 Lo 90 days.

<) Refer Note 41 for informalian about the Group's exposure o Tinancia. risks, ana details of impaiment Iosses for (rade receivables and fair vaies

d} Refer Note 19 for information abowt trade receivables pledged as security

9.02 The movement in allawances for doubtful receivables is as follows:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance - o -
Additiens .14
Write off (net of recovery) - -
Adjustment - =
Closing Balance 0.14 -

<<intentionally Left Blank>>




9,03 Againg of Trade Heceivables

As at March 31, 2025

Partfcutars Qutstanding for foilowing perinds from due date of Receipts
Urbilled Less than) 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than Tetal
Dues HoLDwe 6 months =1 year years 3 years
{1) Undisputed Jrade recejvables - considered good - 631,44 b6946,64 20.48 4.17 | 2.26 1,355.99
{if} Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant - - - - - - 3 =
increase in credit risk
{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - E = B 3
(iv} Disputed Trade Recelvables-considered goad b - - - - - - F
(v} Bisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - - - E R 5
{vi) Bisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - E G 5 5
Less: Allewance for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed + Undisputed) a4
Total 1,355.85
Asat March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for foilowing perieds from due date of Receipts
Unbilled
Bues Kot bue Less than| & months -2 years 2-3 More than Total
& months = 1 year years YEars 3 years
(i) Undisptited Trade receivables - considered gocd - 619.06/ 35.52 25.54 15.41 - - 975.53
(i} Undispuled Trade Receivables -which have significant - - . - o 3 B .
(1) Undisputed Trade Raceivables - credit jinpaired - - - = = A = o
[iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - . - - . 5
{v) Dispuied Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - " 5 o - =
{vi} Disputed Trade Receivables - credit itnpaired - 3 = - = . d &
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtfut debts (Disputed + Undisputed) E
Total 975.53
ol «<Intenticaall k>>
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Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited

{Formerly known as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited’, prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited")

Motes forming part of the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All Arnount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Batances with banks:
in current accounts
in depasits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

Notes:

As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

61.72 11.26
2.50 3.50
0.08 0.09

64,30 14.85

a) There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and prior

periods.
b} Refer Note 41 for information about the Group's exposure te financial risks,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

in current accounts

in deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

1

-

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
in earmarked balances with hanks*
in deposit with maturity for mare than 3 manths butless than 12 menths

Hotes:

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

61.72 11.26
2.50 3.50
0.08 0.09

64.30 14.85

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

3.61 1.93
1.00 g
4.61 2.93

a) *Represents amount transferred to the bank for Unspent corporate social responsibility.

b} Refer Note 41 for information about the Group's exposure to financial risks.

12 Other financial assets
Current (Unsecured, considered good}
Contract assets - Unbilled revenue
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

“Refer nole 37 related party transactions

13 Other assets
Current (Unsecured, considered good)
Advance recoverable
Balance with Government authorities
Prepaid expenses

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

611.16 1,031.10
5.30 4,56
616.46 1,035.66
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

17.46 8.87
89.87 38.58
67.43 37.34
174.76 84.79




Sead lnics Fotens Cempany Limiad

(Formarly known &3 "Staed Infra Seiuticns Campany Private Limited', priar ta thak as ‘Sceeld Infra Solutions Privats Limited')
Hotas forming part of the £ ifdated Financial 5 s for the yaar endéd March 31, 2025

{AIL Ampunt Tn INR Mitkians, uniess otherwise stated)

14 Equity Share capital
14.01  Eguity shares
Az at Apat
#arch 31, 2029 March 31, 2024
h
[65,000,000 Shares] (March 31, 2024: 45,000,000) Equity Shares af INR 10 each 650,00 450.00
550,00 450.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald up
[40,603,942 Shages ] (March 31, 2024 : 40,603,947 | Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid 406.04 406.04
Total 406.04 406.04
(i} Racenciltation of autherised aquity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the yaar
As at March 3%, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2624
Number of shares Amount Humber of shares Amaynt
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 4,50,00,000 45000 4,50,00,000 450.00
Add: Increase during the year 2,00,(x1,000 20000 - -
Outstanding at Lhe end of the year 5,5p,00,000 50,00 4,50,00,000 450.00
{1y Feconcliiation of equity shares outstanding 4t the beglnning and at the end of the year for fully patd shares
Az at March 35, 2025 As akt March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amaunt
Quitstanding 2t the beginning of the year 4,06,03,942 406.04 3,57,55,829 357.36
Add: Movement during the year -
on receipt of balance calls in arrears of Partly paid shares - 30,35,720 a5
on exercise of Share warrants - - 18,12,393 18.13
Quistanding at the end of the year 4,0:6,03,942 406.04 4,06,03,942 406,04
{iil}  Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginaing and at the #nd of the year for partly pald shares
As at March 37, 2025 As at Msrch 31 20324
Number of shares Amount Humber of shares Amaynt
Quistanding at the beginning of the year - . 30,35, 720 a7
Add: Cabls in amrears received- INR Nil (March 31, 2024 : IHR 7.5} . - g 16.41
Add: Calls In arrears received- R Hil {March 31, 2024 : [NR 5} - - - 4.23
Add: Movement during the year due to shares being Iully paid up - {30.35.720) 130.35)
Cutstanding st the and of the year 5 B 5 = B
{i¥)  Rights, preferencas and rastrictions attached to shares
Fhe Campany has only one class of equily shares having par value of INR 10 per share. The holder of the cquity share is entitled te dividend right and votng rght in the same proportion as the capital paid-
up an such equity share bears Lo the Lotal pald-up equily share capital of te Company.
In the event of liquidaticn of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled e receive the remalning assets of the Company in the same proportion as the capital paid-up on the equity shares
keid By them bears to the total paid-up equity share capilal of the Cempany.
{v Details of shares held by shareheldors hoiding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in tne Company
Hams of the shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2034
Humber of shares % of holding in Humbar of shares % of holding in the
the glass tlass
Exquity shares of INR 10 each Tuilly paid
Rawikant Uippal 74,935,212 16.46 74,85,212 1846
MK Ventures 86,631,246 1.4 86,63,246 .34
Ranjan Sharma 34,46,400 2.49 34,46,400 8,49
Poonam Sharma 26,36,195 6.49 16,36,195 619
Surin Holdings 58,70,956 14.46 57,483,456 .12
#eridian Investments 26,82,506 661 73,74,685 5.83
Elimaté Advisors Private Limited - - 20,%3,230 5.6
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/imembers and ather declarations received from sharebwolders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharehotding represents both lagal
and beneficial ownerships of shares.
{vi}  Shareholding of promatars
As at March 31, 025 As at March 31, 1024
Promater name Ha. of Shares % of tatal shares  |% Changa during Ha. of Shares % of total % Change during
the year shares the yaar
Ravikant Uppal 74,595,242 18.46%] - 74,95,212 18.46% 0.04%
Kannabiran Rajagopal 7,131,815 1.76% - 7.13,815 1.76H 0.40%
Niladri Sarkar 4,31.250 1.06% -0.26%] 5,368,730 1.33%) 0.33%
Total 36,40,277 21.28% =0.26% 87,472,777 21.55% 0.774]

<<Intentionally Left Blanks»




staw! Infra Solutons Company Limited

{Farmerly known as *Stee! Infra Salutions Company Private Limited', prior to that a5 'Stesl Infra Solutions Private Limited'}
Hotes forming part of the G ildated Financial Stat ts for the year endad March 31, 2025

{All Amount in INR Mitkiens, unless otherwise stated)

{wil}  Details of shares held by shareholders in the Company

Hama of the shareholdar As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Humber of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding

Ravikant Uppal 74,95,211 18.46% 74,95,212 18.46%
Kannablran Rajagopal 7,13,815 1.76% 7,13,815 1.76%
Hiladri Sarkar 4,31,250 1.06% 5,38,750 1.33%
HK Ventures B6,63,146 21.34% B6,63,248 21.34%
Siddharth Shashtkantbhai Shah 55,324 0.14% 55,34 0.14%
Sumit Bhalotia 55,324 0.14% 55,324 0.14%
Tushar dchra 53,324 0.14% 53,334 0.14%
UAP Advisors LL? 335,94 0.82% 3,31,544 0.82%
Ranjan Sharma 34,46,400 Bdvd 34,46,400 8.49%
Poonam Sharma 26,316,195 £.49% 26,36,195 B.49%
Star Global Resource Limited 4,74,381 1.47% 4,714,381 1.47%
Wharten Engineering & Developers Limited 3,00,246 0.74% 3,00,246 0.74%
Surin Holdings ilP 58,70,956 14.46% 57,603,456 .19
Krishna Fabricatians Fyivate Limited 4,23,729 1.04% 423,719 1.04%
Feridian investments 26,8Z,506 6.61% 23,74,684 5.85%
Zarksis Jahangir Parabia 12,01,515 2.96% 12,01,51% 2.965%
Hebzad Jahangir Parabia 12,064,515 2.96% 12,010,815 2.96%
Elimath Advisors Private Limited = 0.00% 20,93,220 5.06%
Setu Securities Private Limited 1,78,000 0.93% 4,23,72% 1.04%
Sushma Anand Jain B,47,458 2.09% 8,47, 458 2.09%
Flute Aura Entedprises Private Limited 1,54,238 0.63% 2,54,238 Q.63%
Arcen Raman 2,54,218 0.63% 2,54,238 0.63%
Team India Managers Limited - 0.0 6,35,593 1.57%
Narayanaswami Jayakumar 2,13,864 032% 2,11,B84 0.52%
Preme Securities Limited 1,592,942 0.38% 1,52,542 0.38%
¥inod Kumar Ladha 75,000 0188 g n
Naresh Kumar Bhargava 75,000 0.18% . -
RYB Enterprises LLP 1,253,000 0.31% - -
Khazana Tradelinks Private Limited 5,00,600 1.23% £ g
Subhkaim Yentures (1) Private Limitad 8,313,220 2.05% - -
TRC Engineening lndia Privale Limited 2,50,000 G.62% - -
Ladnun Consultancy Services LLP 50,000 0.92% - -
Shridhar P lyer 1,85,000 0,46% - -
Santosh Desai 2,211,000 0.54% - -
Madha Jayakumar Vadera 1,52,500 0.38% -

(viii} Mo class of shares have been kssued as bonus shares or for comideraticn other than cash by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year end.

(ix}  Shares rassrved for lssue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the Share based payment plan of the Group, please refer nole 15

(%} Mo class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the peried of live years immediately preceding the current year end.
(x{)  Skaraholdars vide tha Extra-erdinary ganeral maeting huld an March 04, 2025 has approved the following:

During current year, authorized share capital of the Company increased from INR 450 divided into 45,000,000 Equity shares of fHR 40 each to INR 650 divided into 63,000,00¢ Equity shares of INR 10/- pach,
by increasing 20,000,000 Equity shares of [NR 10/- each, ranking pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Company.

15 Cther equity

Hate Az at A at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee stock option seserve 15{A) .62 073
Securities premium 15(B} 779.79 TR
Retalned eamings 15(C} 982.01 692,59
ltam of other comprabensive income (OCI)
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit pian 156} 3.49 2,69
— 1.762.91 1, 476,20
{A} Employesa Stock optian reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.73 0.51
Add: Share-hased payments o employees 1.89 0.22
Less: Transferred to general reserve on exercise of stack options = =
Less: Transferred to general resarve on forieiture of stock options - .
2.62 0.73

The employee stock options reserve |5 used ta recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided te employees, incliding key management personiiel, as part of their remuneration.

Refer to Note 35 for details of these plans,

{B]  Securities pramium®
Opening balance
Securities Fremium - Private Placement
Less: Share |ssue Expense®

Closing balance

79.7% 563.94
o 238,07
S 16.22)
i9.g 77979

* Securities premius is used to record the pramium on issue of shares i.e, the excess of issue price over their face value. The premium received during the year represents the premium
received towards allolment of shares. The reserve can be utilized only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares, buy back of ils awn shares and securities in accordance with

the pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

“* During the previous year, the Company adjusted Rs 16.22 millions expenses incurrad towards raising of equity share capital against the securities premium.




Stoal Infra Solutions Company Limited
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Ratainad Earnings

Opening batance
Add; Profit for the current year
Less : Dividend paid during the year

Clasing balance

Item of othar comprehensiva incoma (QCN)
Re-measursment gains/(losses) on definad banefit plan
=As 2k beginning of year

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benafit plans {net of tax)
Closing balince

Nature and purpose of ftems in cther equity

Retainad sarnlngs

Retaitved eamings o accumuiated surplus represents tatal of ail profis retained since CTom,

for the yoar ended March 31, 2025

ouls, transfers to generat reserve or any such other appropsialions to specific reserves.

Re-measuremant gains/(losies} on dafined banafit plans

Remeasurement of the defined beaefit plans comprises the cumulative nat remeasurement gatns/{losses) on actuarial valualion of post.

Non-currant korrowiags

Secured

Teem loan

From HDFC Bank

Equipment Loan (Refer Note 19,03}

Provisions

Hon Current

As at
March 31, 2025
692.99
2962
(40.60)

982.01

Asat
Hazeh 31, 2025
.09

0.80
1.49

As ak
March 31, 2025

e ———

As at

Rarch 31, 2025

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 34)

Proviston for gratuity 5.68
Fravision for compensated absences &.66
12.34

Other pan~current fiabilithes

Delerred Government Grant

Current borrowings

At amortised cost
Tom Banks
-Cash credit {Refer Note - 19.01)

~ Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (Reler Hole - 19.02)
- Equipment Loan {Refer Hote - 19.03)

Total currant borrowings

Asat

5.28
537

1665

Refer Hote 39 for fair vaiue measurements and Nole 41 for infermation absut the Group’s exposure to financial risks.

<<Intentionally Left Blanks»

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2024
44,54

24B.45

691,99

Asat
__March 31,2024 _
0.4

2.51
2.9

employment delined benefit plan.

Asat
March 31, 074

.54

2.54

H

pany's fnception. Retained earnings are credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay-

Current

As &t
March 31, 2625

As ar
March 31, 2024

G.59 0.26
0.78 0.60
167 0.5

Az at As at
__March31, 10375 _March 31, 2924
o L20
- 1.20

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 11, 2024
13529 32217
11.00
= 2.87

135.79




Stewl Infra Saludons Campany Limited
[Fermerly known as ‘Steal Infra S¢lutlons Company Privata Limitod', prior to that as ‘Steal Infra Solutions Private Limitad’)

Mates forming part of the C lidatsd Financial St for the year anded barch 31, 2025
(AL Amount i INR Millions, ualess otherwise stated)

Rates:

Tarms of repayment

12.01  Cash cradit

{i) The Campany has fund and Nen- Fund Based Credit FacRities fram HOFC bank vide sanction letter dated July 29, 2024 amousting to JNR 850 milliens of Fund Based facility bearing interest rate af 9.25%
and |8 3,120 millions of Non Fund Based Facility {March 31, 2024: INR 750 millions of Fund Based facility bearing interest rate of 9.25% and [HR 2,820 millions of Nan Fund Based Facility} which are secured
by Current assets, Fixed deposits, Factory land and Buildings {Leasehold) and Plant i Machinery - ex¢lusive charge on entire present & future movable fixed asset of the company,
(1§} The Company has fund and Non-Fusd Based Cradik Facilldes from ICIC Bank vide sanction letter dated June 27, 2024 amaunting 1o [NR 350 millions [Cash Credit) of Fund Based facility (March 31, 2024:
INR 250 millions) bearfng interest zale of I-MCLR-EM is 9.00% and Spread is 0.5%, IR 250 millions {WCDL as a sub-limit of cash credil) ef Fund Based Facility (March 39, 2024: INR 250 millions) bearing interest
rate of FMCLR-3M is 8.65% and Spraad 0,.25% and INR 950 millions of Non Fund Based Facility (March 31, 2024: INR 550 mlifons) which are secured by first paripassu charge on Current assets and Factary Land

and Building {Leasehold),

(iii) The Company has Fund and Nor Fund based credit facilities from Axis Bank vide sanction lettar dated January £7, 2025 amounting to INR 250 millions of Furd based Facility bearing interest rate of 34

MCLR +0.15% {presently 9.5% p.a.) payable at monthly intervals and INR 350 milltens of Hon Fund based facility (March 31, 2024 ; INR 230 millions tolal

paripassu charge by way of hypothecation on the raw material purchased out of this faciily without HOC of the existing lenders.

19.01 Guaranteed Emergency Cradit Line

Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line of INR 36 millfons from HDFC Bank was availed in FY 2020-102% is secured by extension of existing charge. This lsan casries an interest rake 9.25% p..

monthly iastalment of INR 1 million after 12 months moraterium.

19.43 Equipmant Lean
Primary Security

Fund and Nen fund facility} which are secured by first

a. and repayable in 36

Teran Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by an exclusive charge by Hypothacation of Equfpment purchased aut of the sald loan asnd the tenure of the Loan is 4 years and interest rate varies between 8,25% - %%

1%.04 Reconciliation of mevements of borrowings (Including Intesest accrued on barrowings} ta cash flows arising from financing activities:

Borrowings

|Particulars Won-current Current.
Asat April 01, 2024 2.54 3ziar
Cash flows:

Repayment of borrowings {2.54) {200.35)

Interest paid on borrowings - {126.73}
Non-cash flows:

interest expense during the year = 125.82
As ab darch 31, 2025 - 135.24
As at April 01, 2023 17.50 38977
Cash flows:

Proceeds from borrewings

Repayment of barrowings [14.94) {51.70)

Interest paid an borrowings - (108.92)
Nan-cash flows:

Interest expense during the year - 107.92
As at March 31, 1014 2.54 311707

Ad o <<intentionally Lelt Blans-»




Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited
{Formerly known as “$teel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited')

Hotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al! Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwisae stated)

0

20,01

Trade payables As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Total gutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises PRI 79.93
Tokal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,776.58 1,112.66
Total trade payables 1,801.4% 1,192.59
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Entarprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
Disclosures relationg to the suppliers registered under the MSMED Act based an the information available with respective companies in the Comparny:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 tarch 31, 2024
(3} Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end af each accounting year:
Principal amount 24.89 79.93
Interest due therecn 0.0z -
Total 24.91 79.93
{b) The amaunt of interest paid by the buyer in terrns of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the - -
payrent made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
{c} The amount of interest due and payable for the pariod of delay in making payment {which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
{d} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of gach accounting year. - -
{e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the, - -
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under secticn 23 of the MSMED Act,
20.02 Ageing of Trade Payables
As at March 31, 2025
Particufars Unbiiled | Payables Not Gutstanding for fotlowing periods from due date of Payment
Dues Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Hore than 3 Total
year years
{1} MSME - 21.10 81 - - S 24.91
{ii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
(tii} Others - 1,701.86 74.72 - - 1,776.58
(iv}Disputed dues - Gthers 2 - | - -
1,722.96 78.53 1,801.49]
As at March 31, 2024
Particufars Unbflled | Payables Not Quitstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Dues Due Less than 1 1-2years 2-3 years Mere than 3 Total
year years
{i} MSME - 42,31 37.62 o - 79.93]
(ii) Disputed dues - MSME 2 - - - - - -
(iii) Others - 41.39 171.27 - - - 11166
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - = - - -
981,70 208.89 - - £,192.59

20.03 Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract / purchase orders.

20.04 Footnotes:

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

(i) Trade payabies are non-interest beanng and are normally settied on 0-120 days terms

{ii) For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 41(B).
{iit} Refer Note 37 for Trade payables due to Related parties.

<<Intentionally Left Blank>>



Steel |nfra Solutions Company Limited

(Formerly known as 'Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as "Steel Infra Sofutions Private Limited")

Nates forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

21 Other financial liabilities As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due on loan* 0.02 0.93
0.02 0.93

“refer note 19.04 for reconciliation in movement of borrowings,

As at March 31, 2024

22 Other current Habilities As at March 31, 2025
Statutory liabilities 9.40
Advances received from customers 396.99
Liabilities towards corporate social responsibility” 3.78
Deferred Income - Government Grant 1.20

411.37

6.36
256.77
3.30
1.20

267.63

* Refer Note 55

23 Current tax liabilities {net) As at March 3i, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current tax payable [net of advance tax INR 89.57 {March 15.07 31.63
31, 2024: INR 50.36)]

19.07 31.63

<<Intentionally Left Blank>>




Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited

{Formerly known as Stes] Infra Solutions Company Private Limited’, prior to that as "Steal Infra Solutions Private Limited'}

Hetes farming part of the C lidated Financial

(Amount in JNR Miliions, unless otherwise stated)

24 Revenie from operations

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ravenue from cantracts with customers (Refer Note 2.34)

Sale of products
~Sale of Fabricated Steel Structures

Sale of services
-Rendering of lastallatior

Other operating revenue
-Scrap Sales
-Other services

24.0% R W d from C

Particulars

Revenue recognised from Custamer contracts

Less:-impairment losses recognised

Other Contracts
Less:-impairment losses recagnised

Total Revenye

24.0Z Disaggregate rivenue infermation

Geographic revenue
India
Others

Timing of Revenue Recognition

A+B

Year Enciad
March 31, 2025

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Products and services Lransferred at 2 point In tine

Praducts and services transieiied over Lime

74,03 Contract bafances ! Following table covers the movement in contract balances during the year

{a} Contract Assat

Particulars
Cpening balance{a)

Add: Revenue recognised during the year

Less: Progress bills raised dusing the year [net of adjustments)

Closing Balance (B}

Trade Recelvabie represents the amount of consideration in exchange for goods or servic

uncanditional.

Contract assets are Initially recognised for revenue from sale of goods.

{b} Contract Habilites

%4.04 Reconcillation of amount of revenue recognised with contract price

Revenue as per centracted price
Adjustments:
Sales retums
Rebates
Othees
from with cust

24.05 Remaining performance obligation:

5,954.78 5,449.94
253.6% 17351
4,207.47 5,623.85
119.57 103.74
33.95 7.28
151.52 111.62
6,360.99 5.734.87
Year Endud Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6,241.42 5,631.13
5, 241.42 5,631.13
119.57 103.74
119.57 103.74
6,350.9% 5,734.87
Year Ended Vear Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
5,361.04 5,125.93
17995 608,94
6,360.99 5,734,387
Year Enced Year Ended
Mareh 31, 3025 __ March 31, 2024
4,074.35 5,553.68
286,64 181.19
6,360.95 5.734.87
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,031.10 627.25
6,241.42 5,63113
(5,661.36) (5,227.28}
Bif. 16 103146
es translerred to the custamers that is
Hil Mil
Year Ended Year ended
March 11, 2025 March 11, 2024
6,360.9% 5,734.87
6,160.99 5,734.87

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not discloed the remaining performance obligation related

disclosures far contracks where the revenue recognized correspands directly

cempleted ko date.

24,06 Revenue from major custoinars

with the valve to the customer of the entity's performance

Revenue from major customers generating sales more than 10% of total revenue, with percentage (X) of total revenue as below ;

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount % of revenue Amount | % of revenus
Revenue 1,003.00 11.75% 1,793.49 | 31.90%/
Nuziber of cistomers 1 3




Steel Inira Solutions Company Limited

{Formerly known as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited')
Notes forming part of the G lidated Financial Stat its for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

25 Other income

Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Interest income

- on fixed deposits designated at amortised cost 25.50 21.7%
= on other financial assets at amortised cost G.47 0.25
~ on athers 334 3.93
Subsidy Income 1.30 1.20
Gain on termination of tease contracts 0.21 -
Miscallaneous income 1.79 an
32.51 27.24
26 Cost of material consumed Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory of raw materials at the beginning of the year 197.39 1B8.44
Adtd; Purchases 4,525.60 1,801.00
Less: Inventory of raw materials at the end of the year 326.23 197.39
4,156.76 3,792.08
17 Changes In inventories of work-In-progress, stores and spares Year Ended Year Ended
March 11, 2025 March 31, 3024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Work-in-progress 234.49 356.01
- Store and spares 124.68 63.09
359.17 419,50
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
“Work-in-progress 342,87 214.49
- Store and sparas 155.32 124.68
498.19 35917
Nat decrease/ {increasa) {139.02} 59.93
28 Employee benefits expenze Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages, bonus and cther allowances 372.40 307.41
Caoniribution te Provident Fund and olher funds (Refer Note 34.02) 19.45 17.11
Compensated absences (Refer Note 34.04) 2.44 2.2
Graiuity expenses (Refer Note 34.03) 4.90 4.13
Share+based payments to employaes {Refer Note 35) 1.89 G2
Staff welfare expenses 9.75 5n
410.85 31356.30
29 Finance costs. Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 11, 2024
Interest on borvowings measured at amortised cost 125.82 107.92
Interest expense an lease liabilities 15.76 34
Iaterest on Ircome Tax 3.54 0.07
Other berrowing costs 3326 23.39
178.38 135.39
“Het of INR 3.88 pertains to pre-capitalisation phase of Yadodara and Hyderabad plant.
30 Depreciation and amortisation expense Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment {Refer Note 5.(a)} 58.81 41.90
Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5,{b]} 16.32 7.60
Intangibie asseis {Refer Note &) &.24 5.04
a1.37 53.64

<<Intentionally Left Blapk>>




Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited
{Formerly known as 'Steel Infra Solutions Company Privata Limited', prior to that as 'Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited’)
HNotas forming part of the Consofidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 3§, 2025
(Amounk i INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)
31 Other expenses

Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Electricity and water

39.3% 56.75
Recruitment and trawing 0.36 0.16
Rent .06 6.63
Repairs and maintenance - Building 4,18 .09
Repalrs and maintenance - Plant &t Machinery 178 .84
Repairs and maintenance - others 3.29 239
Travel and conveyance 25.31 21.31
Pestage and courier Q.77 0.62
Printing & Stationery 1.75 0.98
Communication, breadband and internet expenses .01 1.61
Office expenses 4.45 3.70
Provision for expected credit losses {net} {Refer Note 9.0z) Q.14 -
Labour charges 209.44 128.74
Design & Engineering Charges 5.90 5.68
Factery Housekeeping 6,35 287
Freight Outward 224.48 213.21
Infermaticn Technology 7.7 5.96
inspection Charges 5.68 6.74
knsurance 4.43 4.01
Job Work Charges 537.20 463.11
Materfal Handling 75.13 85.47
Cther Manufacturing Expenses 14.14 9.94
Bank charges 0.2 1.61
Rate B taxes 1.65 2.77
Security Expenses 8.74 3.58
Payments to auditos* 1.53 .83
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer Note 55} 4.93 6.43
Legal and professional charges 7.34 6.83
Loss on dispasal of property, plant and equipment (net} - .31
Loss on foreign exchange transactions {net) 4.23 4.13
Miscellaneous expenses 2.25 p sl
Ir 1,229.33 1,060.97
“dote : The following is the break-up of Auditars remuneration {exclusive of goods and service tax)
Yaar Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024
As auditor:
Statutory awdit 1.40 0.75
Tax audit [R14] 0.05
in other capacity:
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.03 0.03
Total 1.53 0.83

<<lntentionally Left Blunk>>




Steed Infra Solutions Company Limited

3.4

(Formerly known a3 'Steel Infra Solutians Company Frivate Limited’, prior to that as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited’)
Hotes ferming part of the ¢ lidated Fi fal Stat: for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amaunt ir iNR Miflions, unless otherwise stated)
32 Incoma Tax and Deferred Tax
32.01 Income tax expense recognised in the statemant of profit or loss Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cuwrent tax:
= Current income tax charge 3C6.56 80.00
- Adjustments in respect af current income tax of previous year (6.27) -
Deferred tax charge / (credit) :
- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 5.92 {4.55)
Total incame tax exponse reported in the statemant of Pprofik or loss i06.29 75.35
32.02 Deferred tax related to items recoguised in other comprehensive income: Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 0.27 0.84
Total 0.27 0.B4
32.03 Reconciliatian of iax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestie tax rate : Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 435.83 323.80
Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable 109.63% §1.4%
- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier perinds (6.27) -
Tax effects of items that are not deductible in determining taxable income:
- Corparate social responsibility expenditure 1.24 1.62
- Others 1.82 {6.592)
Inceme tax expense 106,48 76.1¢
Movement in Deferred Tax balance
For the year ended March 31, 2025 Opening Bal Recogniseds Recognised/ (reversed) in Closing balance
{reversed) in other comprehensive income
Profit or loss
Deferred tax assets
On expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2.68 1.12 (0.27} 3.53
On Right-of-use assats and lease liabilities £1.00) 2.56 - 1.56
1.68 3.68 (0.27) 5.09
Deferred tax liabifities
On Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 43.07 9.0 - 52,67
43.07 9.60 - 52,67
Deferred tax (assets)/iabilities, net 41 3% 5.92 0.27 41_2_
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Opening Balance Recognised/ R df (reversad) in Closing balance
(reversed} in other comprehensive income
Profit or loss
Deferred tax assets
Qn expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.81 27 {0.84) 2.68
0.81 771 {0.84) 2.68
Defarred tax liabilities
On Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 43.57 (0.50} o 43.07
On Right-of-use assets and lease Liabiljties 2.44 (1.44) - 1.00
46.04 {1.54) - 44.07
Deferred tax {assets}/Tiabilities, net 45.20 {4.55) 0.54 41.39

<<intentionally Left Blanks>»



Stasek Infra Solutions Company Limited

(Farmeriy known as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Company Privats Limited’, prior to that a5 ‘Steel [nfra Sotutens Private Limited?)
Hotes forming part of the Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended March 3¢, 2025

{Amount In [HR Milllons, unless atherwise stated)

33 Eamnlngs par share

Baxlc earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attribulable to equity holders by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit Sefore tax attributable to equity hoiders {after adjusting for Interest on the convertibie preference
shares) by the welghted average number of equity shares autstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on convarsion of

all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.
The following teflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2035 March 11, 7014
Profik attributable to eqgulty holders 329,62 48 .45
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EFS 4,06,03,942 3,93,11,692
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS 4,09,19,764 4,17,62,098
33.01 Ezrning per share (equity shares, par valuo IR 10 each)
Basic Eaming per share {INR) B.12 6.32
Diluted Earning per share [INR) B.as 5.95
Reconcitiation of Weighted average number of Equily shares for calculabig Basic EPS 4,06,03,542 3,93,11,692
Add: Total Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares" 3,15,822 24,50,406
Recaeciliabion of Weighted average number of Equity shares for caleulatig Diluted EPS 4,09,1%,764 4,17,62,098
* nlutive impact of Empluyee Slack Option Schems, Share warrants and parily paid shares
34 Employew henefits
34.01 The Code on Soclal Security 2020
The Code on Social Security 2020 {*the Code'] relating to employee bens( its, dunng the and past L bas received Presidential assent on Seplember 78,

2020. The Code has been published in the Gazelle of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft niles for the Code on November 13, 2020,
However, the effective date fram which the changes are applicable s yet lo be nolifled and rutes for quantifying the financial impact are also nai yet isued, The Group will
@ssess the 1mpact of the Code and will give apprapriate impact in the financial statements in the jreriod in which, the Code becomes effective and the reiated rules to detenmine

the financial impact are published.

34.02 Contrib ta Pefined Contribution Plan

Contributions were made to provident fund and employee state insurance in Indfa for the emplayess of the Group as per the regulstions. These contnibutions are made to

fusds admi by Lhe G of India. The obligation of the Group is fimited Lo the 2mount contributed and it has ne further contractual nor any cther
canstryctive obligation.
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Emplayers Conlribution towards Prevident Fund (PF) 18.75 16,40
Employer's Contribution towards Employes State lnsoance |ESI) 9.70 6.7
19.45 LEAR]

34.03 Defined banefit plans
a} Gratity payable to employees

In accordance with applicable (aws, the Group has a defined benefit Flan which provides Tor gratuity payments {the “Gratuty Plan”} and covers certain categaries of employees
0 Indsa. The gratuity plan provides a lump sum gratuity payment to ligible empioyeds at retirement oF Lermination of their smplayment. Tha amaunt of tie payment is based
an the zrespective employes’s last drawn salary and the years of employment with the Group.. Liabilitles In respect of the gratuity ptan are detemined by an actwarial valcation,
The Group has set up a Grawity Fund for providing benefits to employees and cartain sum will be contributed by the Group Lo the fund from time to kme. The fund has been
created in the form of a trust and it 15 governed by the board of trustess. The brustee enlered into a Group Gratuity Scheme with insurer and premium paid therefare by the

Group wil be camidered as contribution to the fund.

The plan is exposed to a number of risks, including:

- Investment risk: movement of discount rate used against the return from plan assets

- Interest rate risk: decreases/increases in the discount rate used will Increase/decrease the defined benefiL obligatisn
- Longevity Hsk: changes in the estimation of mortality rates of current and former employses,

- Salary risk: increases in {uture salaries increase the grass defined benefit obligation

Actuariat assumptions Year Ended Year Ended
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate {per annum} 5.95% T.2%
Rate of increase in Satary 5.00% 5.00%
Atzritlon rate
Up to 30 years 1% 3%
From 31 to 44 years 2% %
Above 44 years i% 1%
~ortziity Rate Indian Assured Lives indian Assured Lives

ii)

Changes In the present value of deflned benefit chiigation

Fresent value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Het interest expense

Service cost

Berefits paid

Actuarisl {gains} / losses on Obtigation

Present value of vbilgation at the end of the year*
“Included in provision for employee benefits (Refer note 17}

Mortality 2012-14 ULT

Mortalily 2012-14 WLT

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 Harch 31, 2014
(7] 16,31
052 0.75
398 138
(0.83) {054}
(0.08) i1.18)
16,93 1277




Steed Infra Selutions Company Limitad
{Formarly known as “Steel lafra Salutians Company Private Limited’, prior to that as ‘Steel Infra Sofutiens Private Limited';
Hotes forming part of the Consolidatad Finarncial State ments for the year ended Masch 31, 2025

{Amaunt Ir [RR Miliions, unless otherwise stated)

Jii)

)

v

i)

VHY

wiii)

Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Service cost
Met Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets

Total re ized In the § Profit and Loss*
‘Included in Employee benafits expense (Refer Hote 28).

{gain}f loss r d in cther p ive Income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptlions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments
Return on Plan assets excluding ameunts included In net interest expanse
Ri ized in other income

Changes in the fair value of plan assels are, as foliows

Opening balance of falr value of pian assets
incremental Contribution in Fund
Expected return on plan assets

Return on plan assets {excluding amaunts included in ret interest expensa )

Contributicns by employer
Benefits paid
Closing balance of falr value of plan assets

Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balince Shest:

Present value of cbligation as at the end of U year
Fair value of plan assats
Het asset / (Hability) recognized in Balance Sheat”

Cusrent Portion
ReerCurrent Portion
“Included in provision for employes benalits {Refer note 17)

The majar categaras of plan assels of the fair valua of the totz] plan assois are as follows:

Investments quoted in actlve markats;
Quoted equity Tnvestments

Manufacturing and consumer products sector
Telecom sector

LCash and cash equivalents

Unquated investments:
Bonds isiwed by Indian Government

Funds Managed by Insurer
Total

Expected contribution to the fund in the next year

Gratuity

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024
398 138
040 0.41
4.38 1.7%
Year Ended Vear Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 7024
0.52 &.25
1.10} {1.65)
(0.58) (1.40)
Asat As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 1024
Tas 4,63
0.5% a.67
n 241
{0.62) 10.53}
10,38 7.18
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
16.93 12.72
10.38 T8
(6.37} (5.54)
0,89 .26
5.68 5.28
Asat Az at

__Merch 31, 2025

March 31, 7024

10.36 7.18
19.35 = 7.18
As at As at
March 11, 2075 March 31, 2024
6,71 5.8

<<Intentionally Left Blank>>



Steal infra Solutions Company Limited
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Hotes forming part of the G lidated Financial L for the year ended March 31, 2625
tAmaunt 1n INR Miltions, uniess stherwise stated)
ix) Sensldvity analysis

Year Ended
March 31, 7024

{0.88)
C.98

100
(¢.91)

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
Impact on defined benefit obligation March 31, 2025
Discount rate
C.5% tncrease 11.18)
0.5% decrease 28
Rate of Increase in suiary
0.5% increase 1.15
0.5% decrease {5.14)
x) Haturity analysis
As at
Year March 31, 2025
0107 year 0.8%
1 %02 year a5
2o 3 year 0.34
3 to 4 year 0.35
4 105 year .35
5 to 6 year .33
& yrar onwards .14
34.04 Compensated Absences
The Group provides for acc laticn of c ted ab: by certain categories of 1ts employees. These smplayees ¢an carry forwa

0.26
0.63
0.31
0.28
027
024
10.70

rd a portion of the unutilised

“ompensated absences and utllise them in Juture periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per the Group's policy. The Group recards a provision for compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that Increases this entitlement. The total provision recorded by the Group towards this obligation was INK 7.44 Million as

at Manch 31, 2025 (iNR 5.97 million as at March 31, 2024}. Total expense recognised In statement of profit and loss was I4R 7.46 Miflion and MR
March 3%, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively,

35 Employet Stack Option Schame (ESCP)

.12 Million for the year snded

The board vide it resolution dated July 22, 2019, August D8, 2020, August 20, 2021 and March D&, 2074 3pprovad Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (E508 Flar), Employees

Stock Option Plan 2028 (ESOF Plan), Employees Stock Cption Flan 2021 (£507 Plan) and Emplayees Stock Option Plan 2024 (ESOP Plan) respectively (or gra

Optioas in form of equity shares linksd to the ¢ letion of a penod of ¢
the Board of Directors. The employees can Purchase equity shares by exerciaing the eplions is vested at the price specified in the grant.

Once vestad, the cpliam remain exsreisable for a pervod of one year.

g Employes Stock

to the eligible employees of the Group, monitored and supemvised by

Options are granted under tie plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voling rights. When exerclsatile, cach eption is convertible nto one nuniber of equity share.

The exercise price of the share options s equal 1o the markel price of the Underlying shares on the dzte of grant. The contractual term of

the share options is 4 year for

Employees Stack Dption Plan 2019(First 50X Trancrel, Employees Stock Optien Pian 2020 and Employees Stock Option Plan 2021, 5 years for the Employess Stock Optian Flan

2019{Next 50% Tranche), 3 years for the Employees Stock Option Plan 2024 and there are wa cash settlement allemalives for the employees.

During the 13-24 ,The Chairman of Board of directars approved the extension of (he exsrciie pedod of Employaes Stock Oplion Flan 2019 (ESOF ?lan), Employees Stock Qption
Plan 2020 {E50P Plan), Emplayees Stock Option Plan 2021 (Esop Plan} by 2 more years after completion of 3 vears tock in period and one year exercise penod as onginally

provided In these ESOP schemes,

{i) Employ=ss Stock Optiom Flan 2019
The follewing table illustrates the number and weighted average excrciie prices {WAEP) ef, and movements In, share oplions during the year

As at Asat
Emplayees Stack Option Plan 201% March 31, 1025 March 31, 2014
Particulars Humber WAEP (INR) Number WAEP (INR}
Options cutstanding at baginning of year 57,000 i0 38,500 ]
Add:
Options granted duning the year -
Less: 3
Cptians exercised during the year = z - o
Options forleited during the year . - x 1,500 i
Cplions outstanding ak the end of year 57,000 10 57,600 10
Dption exerasable at the end of year 57,000 0 57,000 10

The options sulstanding at the year ending on March 31, 2015 with exercise price of IR 10 are 57,000 opticns (March 14, 2024: 57,000 options) and 2 weighted average

remaining contractual life of ail options are Tranche -1 is 0.31 years {March 31, 2024: 1.31 year); Tranche -7 is 1.33 years (March 31, 2024: 2.3

1 year),

The fair vatue of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes model. The following tables Hst the inputs ta the Optian pricing medel used for the YEars

As at
Harch 31, 2024

erdied:
As at
March 31, 1025

Weighted average fair value of the options at the grant dates {(INR} 1.95
Dividend yield (%) 0%
Risk frec interest rate (%) &.50%
Expected life of share optichs iyears) 3
Expected valatility {¥) 1.00%

Weighted average share pnce (INR) 10.18

1.95
[t
§.50%
3
1.00%
10.18
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{Formerly known as “Steel infra Solutions Company Private Limited’, prior to that as “Steel Infra Salutlons Private Limited')
Hates forming part of the C lidated Financial § s for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Amounk tn IHR Milllons, anlass stherwise stated)

The following Lable iliustrates the number and weighted average exercive piices (WAEP] of, and moverments 1n, share options during the year

Enmiployees Stock Option Flan 2020 As at As at

March 31, 1025 March 31, 1024
Particulars Humber WAEP (IHR] Humber WAEP {INR)
Cptions outstanding at beginning of year 925,000 3L 1,08,000 12
Adsd:
Optians granted during the year . - - -
Less: -
Options exercised during the ysar - - - -
Optons forfeited during the year* - . 13,000 iz
Optiens sukstanding at the end of year 95,000 11 95,600 12
Option exercisable at the end of year 95,000 12 95,006 12

The options cutstanding al the year ending on March 31, 2025 with exercise price of INR 72 are 95,000 options (March 31, 2024: 95,008 optiens) and a weighted average
remaining contractusd life of all aptions are 1,36 years {March 11, 2024 ; 2,36 years},

The fair value af each option is eshmated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes model. The fatiowing tables list the inpuls to the [Option pricing modet] used for the

years ended:
As at Az at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2014
weighted average f2ir value of the ophions at the grant dates {INRj 1.92 1.92
Drvidend yield (%] 0% ok
Risk free interest rate (%} (%4 &%
Expected lile of share aptions {years} 3 3
Expected volatility (%) 1.00% 1.00%
‘Weighted average share price {IHR) 17 12
The following table illustrates the number and wetghted average exercise pnces (WAEP ) of, and movements in, share options duzing the year
Emplayees Stock Opton Plap 2021 Asat Asak
March 31, 2025 = March 31, 204
Particulars Humber WAEP (PR} Humber WAEP {INR]
Options cutstending at beginmng of yaar 1,358,740 13 1,568,950 15
Add:
Dptions graniad during the year - - -
Less: .
Options exercised during the year - ) - -
Opuians forfeiled during the year* 15,000 13 34,250 &
Options outstanding at the end of year 1,20,740 15 1,35,740 13
Option exercisable at the end of year - 15

The options cutstanding at the year ending on March 31, 2025 with cxercise srice of [N 15 are 1,720,740 options (March 3%, 2024 1,35,740 option} and a weighted average
remaining contractual |ife of all oplions are 2.3% years (March 31, 2024: 3.19 yeamn)

<<Intentionally Left Blanks»
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{Amount 1o IHR Millions, unless stherwise statad)

36

36

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes medel. The follawing tables list the inputs te the [Optien pricing model] used for the
years ended:

As at As at
March 31, 2035 March 31, 1024
Welghtad avarage fair value of the options at the grant dites {iidk) 246 146
Lividand yiald (x} 0% ox
Risk fraw inkerest rata (%) [AL [ B 1]
Expecied lile of share oplions (years) 3 1
Expecied volatility (%) 3% 1.00%
Weighted average shars prica [(HA) 14,55 14,55
The followlag table flustrates the number and welghled average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and mavements in, share oplions duning the year
Employees Stock Optlon Plan 2024 As at As at
March 3, 3025 March 31, 7074
Particulars Humber WAEP {INR) Humbar WAEP {INR)
Options eutstanding at begisning af year 4,32,500 75.93 - 3
Add:
Optioas granted dunng the year - . 4,73,560 799
Less:
Optiois exertised during the year - . - -
Options forfeited during the year® 53,500 79.93 41,000 79.93
Options outstanding at the end of year 3,69,004% 79.93 4,327,500 75.93
Optgn exerasable at the end of year . .

The eptions sutstanding at the year ending an March 31, 2025 wilh excrcise price of INR 79.93 are 3,865,000 options {(March 31,2024: 4,32,500 oplicns) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of all options are 2.93 years (March 11, 2024; 3.93 years).

The fair value of each sphon is estimated op the date of grant using the Black Schales medel. The following tatles list the inpuls te the [Cption pricing model] used for the
years epded:

As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 1024
‘Weighted average fair value of the options at the grant dates (INR) 15.46 15.46
Dividend yield (%} 0% (19
Risk {ree interest rate (%) FATE 7A7%
Expected life of share options (years) ey 3
Expected volatility (%) c.o1% 0.0%
Weighted average share price {{NR| 1993 79.5%3

Total expenses arising from Employee Stock Opiion Scheawe (ESOP) recognised in statement of profit or loss as part of Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation were as
follows:

Asat As At
March 34, 2015 March 31, 1014
Employees Stack Option Plan 2019
Employess Stock Option Plan 2020 - -
Employees Stock Option Plan 2021 (LX) Q.07
Employees Stock Option Plan 2024 1.48 .15
Total Employee Stack Optien Schome Compansation 1.8% 0.22

Leases where Croup is a lessee
The Group has ceriann leases facilites under cancellable as well as nan-cancellabir \oase agreements for affice and factery space. Tenure of these agrezments ranges from 2
years +39 years. The lease arrangements, are srenewable on a pertodic basts and some ol Lhese lease agreements have price escalatton clauses.

Thanges in the Lease Fabilities
Particulars As at hsat

march 31, 3625 Harch 31, 2014
At the beginning of the yesr 100.47 B.08
Recogrized during the year 2572.31 95.7F
Accretion of interest 15.76 14
Adjustments” 3.88 -
Payments dunng the year {28.42) {6.79)
Terminaied during the year [4.34)
At tha and of the year 339.68 100.47

"pertains 1o pre<capilalisation phase of Yadodara and Hyderabad plant which has been capitalised.

<<Intentionaily Left Blank>>
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{(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

36.02

36.01

36,04

36.05

7

3701

3r.oz

{ik

{it}

Break-up of current and non-cuirent lease Liabilibies
Current Lease Llabilities

Mom-cument Lease Liabilities

Maturity analysis of lease liabililies {Undiscounted basis)

Particuiars

Less than one year
One to five years
#are than five vears

Total

Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss account

Particuiars

Depreciation of Right-of-use assets {Hote 10}
Interest expense oh Lease Llabilities (Mote 29}
Short-term leases expensed {Hate 31}

Amounts recognited in statement of Cash Flows

Particulars

Interest paid on lease Habilities
Repayment of lease liabilities
Total Cash cutflows for leases

Relatad Party Disclosures:

In accerdance with the requirements of lid A5 - 24 "Re.ated Party Disclosures”, names of the related parties, related party relatioiship,

As at As at
_ March31,2025  _ March3{,7074 _
13.53 6.91
324,15 91.56
As at As at
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2034
45.54 17.37
244.51 69.56
617,51 141.32
NT.b6 148.31
As st As at
March 31, 2025 March 3%, 2014
1147 7.60
15.76 34
1.06 6.63
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 3%, 2004
15.76 141
12,68 1.38
14.43 5.79

including commitments where control exits and wath whem transactions have taken place during reporied periods are as Tollows:

Hames of related parties and description of relationship

(a} Mame of the refated parties where cantrol exists
Subsidiary
SISCOL Infra Private Limited

(b} Hame of the other related parties with whom transaction have taken place during the year, Enterprise over which Key M

influence

1.5urin Holdings LLP

2.Wharton Engineening & Developers Private Limited
A.Krishna Fabrications Private Limited {KFPL)

4.4 K Yentures

5.51ar Giobal Resource Limited

6.1 H Paratna Transport Private Limited
7.Chartered Finance 0 Leasing Lirmted

&. 3oneqd Meridian Trust

Management Parsonnel (KMP}

Nature of relatiomnip

Ravikant Uppal
Kannabiran Rajagopal

. |Ranjan Shamma

Anvan Choudhir

Zarksis Jahangir Parabia
Siddharth Shashikanthhai Shah
Suraj Agarwal

[Rajesh Ratantal Laddha

Reddy Yannam Swam:

tanaging Director

Whaole time Director & Chief Pinancial Dfficer (CFO)
Naon Cxecutive Director

Hon Executive Director (w.e.f May 31, 2022)

Kon Executwe Birector

Kon Executive Director

Group Secretary

Hon Executive Direclor (w.e,f May 31, 2022)
Additignal Directar {w.e.f January 91, 024)

Detalls of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business for the year ended;

transactions and outstanding balances

| exercie si

Name of related party Hature of Relationship As at As at

March 11, 1035 March 31, 3024
Remuneration Pald
1. Shei Ravikant Uppal (M0 & CEQ) KMp 1443 1348
2. Shei Kannibiran Rajagopal [Whele time Director) KMP 13.14 10.79
3. Shri Niladri Sarkar {Whole tme Director} KP - 517
4. Shri Reddy Yannam Swamy KMP 9.01 146
5. Suraj Agarwal K 1.90 .68
Transport, Sarvices Recelvad
JH Parabia Transport Pvi Lid Enterprises contralled by Key Management Personnel 8,60 23.04
3oned Meridian Trust Enterprises contralled by ey Management Personnel - 16071




Stael Infra Salgtlons Company Llnilted

{Farararly known a5 "Steal Infra Solutions Company Private Limited', prior te bhat a3 “Stasl Infra Solutions Privaie Llmited’)
Notes forming past of tha i ildated Financial Skat, for the year anded March 3t, 2025

{Amount iy INR Mililons, unless othsrwise stated}

37.03 Amount dus to/from rolated party as an:

1)

1)

(i}

{iv)

38

ko

Othar Recelvebia -Reimb of axp

SISCOL Infra Private Limited Submidiacy 040 0.26
Account Payabio

JH Parabia Transport Pvt Ltd Enterprises canlrolled by Key Management Personnest [ AF ] 4.94
Share Warrant exercised

Hame of related party Nature of Relaticnship No. of Shares Amoynt in Face Value

1. Shrl Ravikant Uppal KMP 3,498,993 3.49
2. Shri Kanmibiran Rajagopal B#P 1,87,650 1.B8
2. Shri faladri Sarkar KMP 1,53,750 1.54
4. Shat Siddharth Shashikant Bhai Shan Kip 1,419 0.0z
5. Shri Ranjan Sharma Kmp 1,468,400 1.46
€. Shri Zarksis Jahangir Parabia KMP 43,750 049

Terms and conditions of transactions with related partics

The Lransactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent Lo those Lhat prevail 1a arm's length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the year-end are Unsecured and
interest free except for borrowings and settiement occurs in cash. There have been no Buarantees provided or received for any relaled party recervabies or payables. For the
year ended March 31, 2025, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating Lo amounts owed by related parties (March 31 » 2024: Nil}. This assessment is
undertakes each finanzial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market 1n which the related party oparates.

Segment reporting

The Group generales its reveaue from sale of fabricated steel stryctures and rendenng of instaltation services of steel struciure. Considering the nature of the Group's business
and operalions, there are no sep repertable {b and/or geographical) i lante wiik: the i of Ind A5 108 notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and herce, there are no additional discloures to be Provided other than thase aiteady pravided In the Restated Summary Statements.

Gengraphlcal information
Tie customers of the Group are located In the <ountry of domicile i.e, Indwa and specific disclosures have been made in note 24.02,

Revenue fram major customens
Revenue from customers generating sales of more than 10 % of tatal revenue with percentage of tatal revenue are given In nole 24.06

Fair values of financial assets and financial labllitles

As al As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 1024
Financial assats
Financial assats vaiued at amortized cost
Trade receivable 1,355.8% 9r5.53
Cash and cash equivalents 64,30 14.85
Bani balances other than cash and cash equivalent 4.61 29
Investmenls (At cost) 5
Other financial assets 1,025.52 1,194.54
Tolai financhl assats = 2.450.28 2,387.85
Financial liabilities
Financial Uabitities vakued at amortized cost
Boreowings 135.7% 338.68
Trade payables 180145 1,191.5%
Lease Liability 119,68 100,47
Other financial [1abilifes 0,02 0.91
Tatal financial liabilities 2,276.98 1,032.67

The fair value of other current financial assels, cash and cash eduivalents {includes Bank balancas other than cash and cash equivalent), trade receivables | invesiments, trade

payables, lease liabilities, borrowings and other financial liabilities appreximate the carrying amounts because of the shorl term nature of thes= financial irstruments.

The amortised cost using effective interest ate {EIR) of non-current financial assets <onsisting of secunity ard term depesits are not significantiy different from the carrying
armount.,

Financial assels that are neither past due nor impaired inciude cash and cash aquivalents, secunty deposits, ierm deposits, and other financial assets.

<<intentionally Left Blanks»>
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40

41

{4)

18}

Fair value hisrarchy

The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclasing the [air value of financial instruments by valuation technigue:

«Eevel 1 - Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Uabfiities.

sLevel 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observabte for the asset ar Uabiliry, either directly (I.e. as prices} or indirectly {i.€. denived from
prices),

sLevel 3 - Inpats for the assets or liabilities that ars not based on observable market, data {unobservable inputs).

Ho fimanctal assets/liabilities have been valued using level 1 falr value measurements.

The carrying amount of cash and cash squivalents (includes Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent], trade receivables, trade bles, lease liabil

and borrowings are considered o be the same as their faic values. The fair values of borrowings and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a
current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable fnputs including own and countesparty credit Hsk.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group is exposed 1o vartous financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group'’s risk management is coordinated by the

Board of Directors and focuses on securing long term and short tam cash flows. The Group does not. engage in trading of financial astets far sprcutative purposes.

Mariet risk

Market rish is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equily price risk and commodity risk. Financial Instryments affected by market nsk include borrow ngs and
derivative financial Instruments,

{i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the Tisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil Hucluate because of changes in market interest rates, The Group exposure o
the risk of changes th market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-tarm debt obiigations with floating interest rates.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced partiolic of fixed and variable rale ioans and boreavnings.

Interest rate sensitivity
Fhe following table demonstrates the sensitivity 10 4 reasanably possible changs in interest rates on that portios of loans and borrawings, With all other varfables heig constant,
the Group's profit before tax 15 alfected through the impact on flnating rate barravings, as follows:

Efiect on profit

As at Closing balance
1% Icrease 1% Decrease
Berrowings {Impact on profit and loss} As at 135.79 {1.36) .36
March 31, 2025
Borrowirgs (Impact on profit and loss) As at 122.77 13.22) 122

Maarch 3, 2074

(1) Prica sk
The Group nvests jts surplus funds in fixed deposits with reputed hanks in order to manage its price risk arsing from jnveslients.

Price seiaitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of 17 index on the Group's profit and loss for the year

Effect on profit

As at Clasing balance
5% Increaie 5% Decrease
investment in flaed deposits Hmpact on prolit and loss) As al 3EB.69 19.43 (19.43)
March 11, 2025
Inwesiment in fixed deposits {Impact on profit and loss} As at 341.22 17.08 {17.06)

March 31, 2024

{iii) Foreign currancy risk

Fareign exchange risk arises when Individual Group enters into transactions denominated in a currency other than theic functional currency.

In arder to monitor the foreign currency exposure, the management receives a manthly forecast, analysed by the major currencies held by the Group, of liabilities due Tor
settlement and expected cash resarves

As at the year-end, the Group's net exposure ta foreign exchange nisk was as follows;

Currency -USD Curvency -EURQ

March 11, 2025  March 31,7024 March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Trade recewvahtes - - .46 1.82
Teade payables 0.00 (0.45) & -
Others
Forward eachange contracts - {1,271 - 3.80
Tolal net exposure 0.00 (0.87) 10.46) (5.67}

-t

Semlbivity - Impact on profit before tax

March 31,2035 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2074
HERI{USD] - increase by 1% (March 31, 2025: Hil} -0.00 0.68 = =
IRR/[USD] - decrease by 1% (March 31, 2025: Kit) 0.0 {0.68} e -
INAA[Euro} - increase by 1% (March 31, 2024: Kil) - - 0.43 5.06
INRJ[Eurc] - decreasa by 1% {March 31, 2024: Nii} - S (C.41} {5.06)
Credit rsk

Credit risk is the risk of finandial loss to the Group ¥ 2 customer or counterparty Lo a financial istrument Fails to meet its fontractuzl obiigations. Credit risk anses principally
from the Group™s receivabies from deposits with landlords and other statutory daposits with regulatory agencies and alse arises from cash held with banks and financal
wstitutiens. The maxdimum exposure ta credit risk is equal in the carrying value of the fiancial assets. The abjective of managing counterparty ceedit risk is 10 prevent losses in
financial assets. The Group assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial Pposition, past experiance and other factors.

The Group limits its exposure to credit ritk 6f cash feld with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and institutions and retaining sulficient balances in bank accounts
fequired to meet a month’s operational costs, The Management reviews the bank accounts an reguiar basis and fund drawdowns are planned to ensire Lhat there is minimai
surplus <ash in bank accounts. The Group does a proper financial and credibitity check on the landlords before taking any preperty on lease and hasn't had a single instance of
non-refund of security deposit on vacating the leased property. The Group alse in some cotes ensure that the notice pened rentals are adjusted against the security deposits and
only differential, if any, is paid out thereby further mitigating the non-realization risk. The Group does not foresee any credit risks on deposits with reculatory authorities.




Steel infra Solutions Company Limited

(Formerly known as “Steel Infra Solutions Company Privata Limited', prior to that as ‘Steel Infra Salutions Private Limited')
Hotes forming part of the C lidated Financial Stat for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Amount in INR Milliens, unless otherwise stated)

)

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and contral relating to credit risk. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Cutstanding customer
recelvables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major eustomers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit Insurance obtained from reputable
banks ard other financlal insbitutions, At March 31, 2024, the Group had 23 qustomers | March 31, 2024; 28 customers) that pwed the Group mare than INR 162.52 Millions ang
accounted for approximately 3% (March 31, 2024: Y%} of alf the receivables and contract assat wutstanding. There were 33 customers [March 31, 2024: 22 customers) with
balances greater than INR 727,42 Millien accaunting for 3% {March 33, 2024: 82%) of the total amount receivable.

The Group's maximum exposure te oredit risk for the companents of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and March 3, 2024 is the camying amounts as mentioned in Hote 41,

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group subject 10 the Group's established. pelicy, procedures and contrel relating to credit risk Outstanding
customer receivables are reguiarly monitored. Te manage this, the Group penedically assesses the fimancial reliabitity of customers, taking inte account the financial cendition,
eurrent econemic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of trade receivable. The Group creates allawance for all trade receivables hased on lifetime expected
credit loss model (ECL).

Firancial instruments and cash degosits
The Group's treasury, in accordance with the board appraved poiicy, maintains its cash and cash equwvalents, bank depasits, having good reputation and past track recerd, and
high credit rating.

Reconciliation of impairment allawance on trade and other recefvables and contract assets

Particulars Amount
lmpaliment allowance as on April 01, 2024 -
Add: Allowance for expected credit losses 014
|impatrment atlowance as on March 31, 2025 0.14

The significant change In the balance of trade and other receivables are disclosed in note %

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able Lo meet its financial obitgations as they bacome due. The Group manages fts liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible,
that it will aiways have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,

Maturity of Financiai Liabillcies:
The table below summarizes the maturity srofile of the Group's financiel habitties based on contractual andiscounted payments

Less than 3

1t 12 months 1o 5 years Maore than 5 years Total
manths —= A
As at March 31, 2025
Borrowings 135.79 . 13579
Lease Liabilities 10.B3 Lo 24453 627,61 766
Trade payables 1,507.49 - - 1,801,4%
Other financial Liabilikies 0.02 2.02
1,943, 13 3471 144,57 627.61 2,354.5¢
As at Margl 31, 2024
Short term borzowings 136.14 . 336.14
Long-term borrowngs 154 . 2,54
Lease Liabifty 17.37 63.56 161,38 48.31
Trade payables 1,192.59 - . 1,192.59
Otber financial liability .93 - . .91
1.529.66 17.37 7240 161.38 1,760.51
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42

Contingent liabitities and contingent assets
The Company creates a provisian when there 15 present obligation as a result of a past event that probabiy requires an outflow of resources and a reiiable estimate can be made of the amount

of abligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are net discounted to its present value.
The Company records a provision for decommissioning, restoration and simiar liabilities that are reccgnized as cost of property, plant and equipment, Decomemissioning costs are provided at
the present value of expected costs to settle the abligation using estimated cash flows and are recognized as part, of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a
current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning [fability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized 1n the statement of profit and loss
as a finance cost,

A disclosure for a centingent tizbility is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that prabably wilt not require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of

the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed ir the financial statements,

a. Cantingent As at As at
liabilities March 31, 2025 tharch 31, 2024
Guarantees issued by the Company's Bankers on behalf of the Company 1,233.03 94111
1,233.03 4111
\
}
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45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

Details of loans given, Tnvastment made and guarantee given covered ufs 186{4) of the Companies Act, 2013
Investments made by the Company

Sr.Ho. Name of the Company Investment made Balance as at Investment made |Balance as at
during current year  |March 31, 2025 |durlng previous |March 31, 2024
year
1 SISCOL Infra Private Limited” - 0.10 - 0.19

* During current year Nil { previous year Hil) invested in SISCOL infra private limited

Details of Benami Proparty held
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any praceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for Lolding any Benami property.

Wiiful Defaulter
The Company has nat bean declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or governmaent. or any government authority.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions with companias struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet. to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of tayers prescribed under clause (87} of section 7 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017,

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The company has not. entered inta any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Undisclosed income

The Company does pot have any undisclosed income which is not recerded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year {and previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961,

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in CTypto currensy or Virtuak Currency during the financial year.

The Compaay has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors and KMPs, either severally or jaintly with any other person.

Commitments

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- Estimaked Amount of contracts remaining to be executed 561.50 53.25

on capital account and not provided for[Net of Advances)
61.50 s

<<|ntenticnally Left Blank>>
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55 Corporate Social Responsibility
As par Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicabilily thresnold, needs to spend at keast 2% of jts average net profit for the inmediately preceding
three financial years on corporate social responsibitity (C5R} activities. The CSR activities focus on education, support for the elderly and differently-abled, skill development, and
sociak welfare initiatives. A {SR committee has been formed by the Company as per the Act and the funds are itilised through the year on these activities which are specified i
Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013,
55.01 Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Grass Amount. required to be spent as per 4,94 3.62
Section 135 of the Act
Add: Amount Unspent from previous years 3.30 .82
Total Gross ameunt required to be spent durinig 8.24 6,44
the year
55.02  |Amount approved by the Board Lo be spent 4,46 3.14
during the year
53.03 Amount spent during the year on
(£} Construction/acquisition of an asset - .
{il} On purposes other than (i) above 4.46 3.14
55.04  Details related to amount spent/ unspent
Asat Asat
ti
e — March 31, 2025 March 31, 7024
Contribution to Frust 2.68 2.58
Spent on ackivities 1.78 0.56
Acerual towards unspent obligations in
relation to:
Ongoing prajects 178 .30
Other than Qngeing projects - -
TOTAL 3.24 &. 44
55.05 Detalls of CSR expenditure in respect of other than ongoing projects
Nature of Activiky Balance unspent as | Amount required to be Amount spent, during the year Balance unspent as|
at Aprl 01, 2024 | spent during the year at March 31, 2025
From Group's Bank From separate CSR
account unspent account
CSR 2.30 4.94 - {4.46) 3.78
Nature of Activity Balance unspent as | Ameunt required to be Amount spent during the year Balance unspent as
at Aprif 01, 2023 | spent during the year at March 31, 2024
From Group's Bank From separate C5R
accsunt unspent account
CSR. 2.82 3.62 - (1. 14} 3.30
55.06 Disclosures on Shartfall

Due ka vartous ongolng projects, board has decided to tra

years.

<<lvtentionally Left Blank>>
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Steel Infra Solutions Company Limited

(Fermerly known as “Steel Infra Solutiens Company Private Limited', prior to that as ‘Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited')
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Amount in [NR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

57 Capital management
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximize the sharehalder value of the parent and to ersure the Group's ability to continue
as & going concem.

The Group menitors gearing ratio ie. total dabt in proportion te its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and debt. It manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risi characteristics of the underlying assets.

As ak As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total equity (i) 2,173.95 1,882.24
Barrowings other than convertible preference shares 135.79 338.68
Less: cash and cash equivalents {64.30) {14.85)
Taotal debt i) 71.4% 323.83
Overall financing (iii} = () + (i) 2,745.44 2,206.97
Gearing ratio {ii)/ (iii) 0.03 0.5

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Campany’s capital management, amengst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached ko
the interest-bearing toans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been na breaches in the financiai covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for mmanaging capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

58 Dividend
The Board of Directors, in its meeting hetd on June 20, 2025, recommended a final dividend payment of INR.1 per equity share for the financial year ended March
3, 2025.This payment 15 subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing AGM of the Company.

59  Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year's classification/disciosures.

As per our report of even date
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